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MESSAGE FROM 
THE MANAGING DIRECTOR
Dear Shareholders,

It is with immense pride, humility, and
gratitude that I share with you the Fourth
Annual Report of Clara Industries Limited
for the financial year 2024–25. Each
annual report is more than just a
collection of numbers and achievements
— it is a story of people, perseverance,
and progress. For me personally, this
letter is a chance to pause, reflect, and
connect with you on the journey we are
building together.

The year 2024–25 brought with it its own
set of challenges and lessons. Global
headwinds, fluctuations in raw material
prices,    and     a   demanding     business
           environment  tested  the  resilience
                      of many industries, including
                            ours.      While        these 
                             circumstances          did
                              create         short-term
                              hurdles,      they     also
                              provided      us      with
                              opportunities to pause,
                               reflect, and reimagine
                               how  Clara   Industries
                             could continue building
                            strength   for   the   long
                           term.     Rather         than
                         chasing  temporary  gains,
                      we   chose  steadiness  over
                      speed,         clarity        over
                         confusion,   and   purpose
                                     over pressure. This
                                                choice was                   
                                                             not

always easy, but it was the right one for
sustaining future growth.

What gave me the greatest sense of pride
this year was not just how we navigated
these challenges, but how we did so with
calm resolve and integrity. Every decision
was guided by our core values — honesty,
responsibility, and innovation. Our people
stood united, our stakeholders remained
supportive, and our customers reaffirmed
their trust in us. Together, we showed that
Clara Industries is not just a company, but
a collective spirit.

One of the defining strengths of Clara
Industries is the spirit of our employees. In
countless instances this year, I witnessed
ordinary people doing extraordinary
things — teams working late into the night
to ensure timely deliveries, managers
stepping in personally to support their
colleagues, and individuals going beyond
their defined roles simply because they
believed in the larger purpose of the
Company. These moments reaffirm my
belief that the true capital of Clara is not
just financial, but human.

In moments of reflection, I often remind
myself that true leadership is tested not in
times of plenty, but in times of pressure.
This year was a reminder of that truth.
And while growth numbers were more
modest compared to our previous record
highs, what we built was equally
important — stronger foundations, sharper
focus, and deeper resilience. These are
the invisible gains that do not show up on
a balance sheet immediately, but they set
the stage for the future we are
determined to create.



One of the areas closest to my heart is
sustainability. As an organisation that
deals with packaging, we understand the
responsibility we carry. Each innovation
we pursue, each process we refine, is
guided by our belief that progress must
not come at the cost of our planet. This
year, we took meaningful steps towards
eco-conscious packaging, reducing
waste, and exploring alternatives that
align with India’s evolving environmental
goals. These steps may be small in the
larger picture, but every small step, when
taken consistently, creates ripples of
change.

Another area where we made quiet but
significant progress was digital
transformation. By adopting smarter
technologies across our operations, from
supply chain monitoring to customer
engagement, we have laid the foundation
for greater efficiency and transparency.
These efforts are not just about keeping
pace with industry trends, but about
creating a future-ready organisation that
can anticipate change rather than react
to it.

Equally important is our contribution to
the communities around us. Through our
CSR initiatives, we strengthened our
focus on education, healthcare, and
environmental awareness. I have
personally witnessed the impact of these
efforts — a child stepping into school with
new possibilities, an area gaining better
healthcare facilities for the elderly, and
families finding access to cleaner and
healthier living conditions. These
experiences remind us that the true
measure of business success lies in how
meaningfully it touches lives beyond our
immediate stakeholders.

Looking ahead, the future excites me. The
packaging industry is at the cusp of
transformation.   Consumer   expectations   

are changing, sustainability is becoming
central, and technology is reshaping
possibilities. At Clara Industries, we are
not just preparing to adapt to these shifts
— we are preparing to lead them. By
investing in research, innovation, and
most importantly, in our people, we are
ensuring that Clara will continue to
deliver solutions that are not only
profitable but also purposeful.

As I write this letter, I am filled with
gratitude. Gratitude to our employees,
whose dedication makes every milestone
possible. Gratitude to our partners and
customers, whose trust fuels our
determination. And gratitude to you, our
shareholders, for walking this journey with
us, through both highs and lows, with
unwavering belief in our vision. Your trust
is our greatest strength.

Clara Industries is still young in its journey,
yet the spirit with which we move forward
is timeless — a spirit of resilience,
responsibility, and relentless optimism.
The road ahead is long, but with your
continued support, I am confident that we
will not just travel far, but travel
meaningfully.

Together, we will continue to write a story
of growth that is not only measured in
profits, but also in purpose.

Warm regards,
Parry Kukreja

Managing Director
Clara Industries Limited



MESSAGE FROM 
THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Dear Stakeholders,

It is my privilege to present the financial
review and outlook for Clara Industries
Limited for the fiscal year ended 31st
March 2025. The year gone by has been
a period of testing resilience,
recalibrating strategies, and reinforcing
financial discipline amidst an environment
of persistent uncertainties. Businesses
across the globe were compelled to
adapt quickly, balancing immediate
operational priorities with long-term
growth imperatives. At Clara, we
responded with agility and foresight,
guided by a clear purpose of building a
financially      strong    and    future-ready  
             organization.
 
                          During    the    year,     we
                           witnessed      moderated
                            topline      performance, 
                            largely           influenced
                            by         macroeconomic  
                            fluctuations,      regional
                            elections,  and  ongoing
                            global           inflationary
                            pressures. Despite these
                          headwinds, we were able
                         to safeguard the health of
                       our   bottom   line   through 
                       rigorous  cost management
                                          and   efficiency           
                                              measures. By 

rationalising non-critical expenditure,
streamlining procurement, and focusing
on value-added operations, we ensured
that margins remained resilient.

Our approach was centered on internal
optimisation, driving higher productivity
across our three units and enhancing
supply chain responsiveness. These
actions not only cushioned the impact of
external pressures but also created a
leaner cost structure that will support
stronger operating leverage in
subsequent periods.

A key highlight of the year has been the
continued emphasis on prudent capital
allocation. Despite a challenging
operating environment, Clara Industries
maintained a robust liquidity position,
ensuring adequate headroom for
strategic investments. Our debt profile
reflects conservative financial
management, with borrowings kept well
within manageable levels. This financial
discipline provides us with the flexibility to
deploy capital judiciously when attractive
opportunities arise, without compromising
on balance sheet integrity.

Cash flow management remained a top
priority, with significant improvements in
working capital efficiency achieved
through better receivables collection,
inventory planning, and supplier
engagement. These efforts helped
strengthen our operational cash flows,
enabling us to sustain essential
investments in modernization and product
innovation.



Throughout the year, we reinforced our
focus on productivity improvements
across the manufacturing footprint.
Investments in advanced machinery,
process automation, and digital
monitoring systems have begun to yield
tangible benefits in terms of reduced
downtime, higher throughput, and
consistent quality. At the same time,
initiatives in energy optimization and
waste minimisation contributed to
lowering operating costs while furthering
our sustainability objectives.

We also placed emphasis on enhancing
the finance function’s capabilities, with
digital tools being deployed to improve
forecasting accuracy, cost tracking, and
scenario planning. This has allowed
management to make timely and
informed decisions, even in a volatile
external environment.

Importantly, we did not compromise on
our core commitment to sustainable
operations and responsible financial
conduct. We continue to evaluate
strategic investments that strengthen our
product portfolio while aligning with our
Environmental, Social, and Governance
(ESG) principles. The finance team has
begun integrating ESG considerations
into capital planning and risk
assessments, ensuring that every financial
decision aligns with the company’s long-
term sustainability roadmap.

Looking ahead, we expect a gradual
normalization of demand in both
consumer and industrial segments,
supported by structural growth drivers
such as e-commerce expansion,
increased packaging demand, and
government-led initiatives for
manufacturing. While external volatility—
particularly in raw material prices and
currency movements—may continue,
Clara Industries is well positioned to
navigate these challenges.

Our financial strategy for the coming
years is anchored on three
interconnected pillars. The first is fiscal
prudence, where we will continue to
maintain tight control over costs, adopt
disciplined borrowing practices, and
ensure judicious deployment of capital.
Alongside this, we are focused on growth
enablement by channeling resources into
capacity expansion, including the
upcoming woven sack plant, while also
diversifying into value-added packaging
segments that promise long-term
potential. Equally important is the
integration of sustainability into every
aspect of our financial and operational
planning, embedding responsible
practices that will strengthen resilience
and position Clara Industries as a leader
in sustainable growth.

I extend my heartfelt gratitude to our
Board of Directors for their steady
guidance, to the finance team for their
dedication and precision, and to our
employees whose everyday commitment
forms the backbone of Clara’s success. I
also thank our valued stakeholders for
their continued trust and belief in our
vision.

As we step into the next fiscal year, we
do so with cautious optimism, clear
financial direction, and a reinforced
determination to create long-term value
for all stakeholders.

Sincerely,
Nikhil Kukreja

 Chief Financial Officer
 Clara Industries Limited



CLARA AT A GLANCE
A snapshot of our business verticals and the industries we serve.

PACKAGING FILMS BUSINESS
Manufacturing high-performance films for flexible packaging
across industries.

RECYCLED GRANULES BUSINESS
Transforming plastic waste into high-quality recycled granules for
reuse.

FLEXIBLE PACKAGING BUSINESS
Providing customised laminate pouches and roll forms for FMCG
and pharma.

PP MATS BUSINESS
Offering durable, lightweight polypropylene mats for home use,
exports, and institutional applications.

SELF ADHESIVE TAPES BUSINESS
Supplying industrial-grade and retail adhesive tapes for packaging
and sealing.

FOOD WRAPS DIVISION
Innovating sustainable alternatives to foil and cling film for safe
food use.

HORTICULTURE BAGS BUSINESS
Manufacturing strong, UV-resistant bags designed for nursery
plantations, agriculture, and export markets.



STRATEGIC & OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

INFRASTRUCTURE STRENGTH
Three manufacturing units
strategically operational,

strengthening our national
production footprint.

PRODUCT PORTFOLIO
Diversified presence across

seven business verticals,
actively serving both B2B

and retail markets.

PROCESS EFFICIENCY
Enhanced production

planning and scheduling
systems to improve

operational output and
resource use.

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS
Sustained customer

engagement and retention
across key product

segments, reinforcing
brand trust and loyalty.

COST MANAGEMENT
Targeted cost optimization

initiatives implemented
successfully to preserve

financial discipline.

MARKET PRESENCE
Sustained market presence

across core domestic
territories, while steadily

expanding reach into
emerging global markets.

This year, Clara focused on building operational
depth, streamlining efficiencies, and preparing the

groundwork for sustainable growth ahead.



REVENUE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

PROFIT AFTER TAX

COST EFFICIENCY

RESILLIENCE & STABILITY

FINANCIAL CONTROLS

₹1,103.78 lacs recorded, reflecting steady
demand and operational resilience in key
geographies.

Delivered ₹282.97 lacs in PBT, underscoring
stable core performance and effective cost
oversight.

Profit After Tax stood at ₹189.03 lacs— a
result of disciplined execution and strategic
focus.

Focused cost optimisation and lean
operations helped preserve profitability
despite market headwinds.

Strengthened internal controls, compliance,
and reporting accuracy across financial
systems.

Maintained financial and operational
consistency despite a challenging
macroeconomic environment.

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS FY 2024-25



STRATEGIC REVIEW &
MANAGEMENT PERSPECTIVE
The financial year 2024–25 brought with
it a blend of challenges and turning
points for Clara Industries. From
fluctuating global input prices to
unpredictable domestic demand patterns,
businesses across sectors were required
to respond swiftly and thoughtfully. For us
at Clara, the year was not defined by
headline growth numbers, but by the
groundwork laid quietly behind the
scenes. This was a year of consolidation,
recalibration, and positioning ourselves
for a new phase of responsible growth.

Rather than aggressively pursuing
expansion in uncertain terrain, we chose
to stabilize our core. Emphasis was
placed on protecting profitability in a
volatile cost environment while ensuring
strong, enduring relationships across our
customer and supplier ecosystems. These
efforts translated into improved
operational discipline, leaner inventories,
and tighter procurement cycles—all
designed to ensure agility in times of
uncertainty.

Our diversified business portfolio—from
Packaging Films and Recycled Granules
to Flexible Packaging, Self-Adhesive
Tapes, and Food Wrap Solutions—
delivered stable output, thanks to a
production model that prioritized real-
time demand responsiveness. Despite
subdued demand in some downstream
sectors like FMCG and agri-inputs, Clara
maintained a customer-first approach,
ensuring timely deliveries and consistent
quality. We viewed softness in demand
not as a constraint, but as an opportunity
to optimize resources and refine systems.

Operationally, the year was marked by
forward-thinking investments that will
shape our long-term growth. We laid the
foundation for new capacities, including
the planned entry into woven sack
manufacturing—a move aligned with our
vision to expand responsibly into adjacent
segments of the packaging industry.
While full commissioning and impact will
be felt in the next fiscal year, these
strategic steps underscore our belief in
investing during uncertainty to harvest in
certainty.

In line with our sustainability commitment,
Clara continued to integrate circular
economy principles across manufacturing
units. Our recycled granules division
achieved improved throughput and
efficiency through energy-conscious
upgrades and tighter waste control
measures. This not only contributed to
lower production costs but also
reinforced our long-term environmental
stewardship goals. The alignment of
environmental responsibility with business
efficiency remains central to our
operational ethos.

On the digital front, we accelerated the
adoption of automation, predictive
maintenance systems, and data-driven
quality control. These technology
interventions allowed us to streamline
production cycles, reduce downtimes,
and unlock higher output-to-cost ratios.
Going forward, we see digital
transformation not just as a cost lever but
as a core enabler of smarter
manufacturing and customer service.



Our market strategy was equally focused
and deliberate. Clara expanded its
visibility in underpenetrated Tier 2 and
Tier 3 cities, where the demand for
household utility products like food wraps
and PP mats is on the rise. These markets
offer better pricing stability and brand
stickiness, and our early mover advantage
positions us well for deeper penetration in
the coming years.

Importantly, we prioritized internal
capability building—investing in training,
upskilling, and SOP standardization to
prepare our workforce for scale and
diversification. This cultural shift toward
continuous improvement and proactive
adaptation is what we believe will set
Clara apart in the evolving manufacturing
landscape.

Looking ahead, Clara’s growth roadmap
is centered on strategic depth over
speed. Our priority is to strengthen our
manufacturing backbone, integrate
verticals wherever synergies exist, and
bring more value-added products into our
pipeline. As industry shifts toward
sustainability, cost-efficiency, and agile
manufacturing, Clara aims to lead not
just by numbers, but by the clarity and
responsibility of our intent.

The broader policy landscape this year
also signaled strong opportunities for
companies like Clara that are aligned
with India's focus on domestic
manufacturing and sustainability. With the
government promoting circular economy
models, reduced plastic usage, and
infrastructure-driven demand for
packaging, we see a clear policy tailwind
for our key business segments. As we
align our operational goals with national
objectives such as “Make in India” and
“Swachh Bharat,” Clara is well-positioned
to play a meaningful role in India’s
industrial and environmental progress.

Risk management remained a central
pillar of our operational decision-making.
With input costs showing unpredictability
—especially polymer-based raw materials
—we employed dynamic procurement
strategies, diversified sourcing partners,
and closely monitored forex volatility. Our
internal teams also strengthened
scenario-based planning, ensuring that
any geopolitical or macroeconomic
disruptions could be mitigated without
destabilizing core operations.
Additionally, risk controls were extended
across compliance, cyber-security, and
inventory management, ensuring holistic
preparedness.

As we move into FY 2025–26, Clara
Industries stands on the threshold of its
next growth curve—one defined by scale,
trust, and innovation. Our strategic focus
will remain on operational integration,
brand building in consumer-facing
categories, and strengthening our export
footprint. With the newly added capacity,
a culture of continuous improvement, and
the trust of our stakeholders, we are
confident in our ability to deliver both
financial performance and long-term
value creation.



SUSTAINABILITY IN PRACTICE

At Clara Industries Limited, sustainability
is not a box we check — it is a mindset
that informs our every action, decision,
and innovation. As a company operating
in the industrial and consumer packaging
space, we recognise the ecological
challenges that conventional packaging
materials present. This understanding has
inspired us to build a business model that
is not only growth-focused but also
circular, regenerative, and rooted in
environmental intelligence.

We believe that truly sustainable
operations begin with responsible
material stewardship. One of the most
impactful examples of this is our zero-
waste-to-landfill policy across all units.
Every gram of PP and BOPP waste
generated during our manufacturing
processes is captured, segregated, and
recycled. This scrap material is not
treated as waste — but as a resource.
Through a robust internal recycling
system, it is transported to our dedicated
Unit-2 facility, where it is transformed
into high-quality recycled granules. These
granules are then reintroduced into our
operations to produce sturdy, long-life
polypropylene (PP) mats, effectively
creating a closed-loop system that
extends the usable life of plastic and
reduces reliance on virgin raw materials.

But our sustainability strategy goes far
beyond waste management. We have
embedded efficiency and conservation
into the DNA of our production
architecture. Real-time quality control

systems ensure that overproduction is
avoided, batch errors are caught early,
and raw material consumption is
optimized. These systems work alongside
lean manufacturing principles that help us
maximize material yield and reduce
process scrap. It is a continuous cycle of
improvement — one that is driven by data,
refined through discipline, and scaled
through innovation.

As part of our long-standing commitment
to greener operations, Unit-1 is equipped
with a solar backup plant that plays a key
role in supporting uninterrupted
production. This renewable energy
solution helps mitigate losses during
power outages by ensuring operational
continuity and protecting in-process
materials from potential damage. Beyond
its functional benefits, the solar backup
also contributes to reducing our reliance
on conventional energy sources, aligning
with our broader efforts to decarbonise
manufacturing. Looking ahead, we are
actively exploring the feasibility of
extending similar renewable energy
initiatives to other units as part of our
ongoing sustainability roadmap.

Beyond equipment and infrastructure, our
sustainability vision is also shaped by a
deep commitment to energy and resource
optimization. While manufacturing
remains an inherently power-intensive
industry, our goal is to continually lower
our energy usage per metric ton of
output. This is being achieved through a
mix of strategic measures  

What We Do, Every Day



— from the adoption of energy-efficient machinery to predictive scheduling of
production batches that reduce idle run time. Training our workforce to adopt energy-
conscious behaviours on the shop floor has also emerged as a key lever in this process.

Our innovation in product design also aligns with our sustainability commitments. We are
actively developing and commercialising lightweight, high-barrier packaging films that
deliver strength and performance with lower material usage. These products directly
contribute to reducing transportation emissions by lowering load weight, while also
being easier to recycle — amplifying impact across the value chain.

In essence, sustainability at Clara Industries is not a single program — it is a systemic way
of working. It finds expression in how we plan our capacities, design our processes,
manage our waste, train our teams, and engage our suppliers. We view our business not
in isolation, but as part of a broader environmental and social ecosystem. Each year, we
are learning, evolving, and refining our approach — guided by the belief that responsible
manufacturing is not just possible, but imperative.

As we move forward, we will continue to invest in technologies, systems, and
partnerships that help us stay ahead of sustainability standards — and redefine what
responsible industrial leadership looks like in India and beyond.



The future of industry will not be defined
solely by how large a company becomes
or how profitable it is, but by how
responsibly it operates and how
purposefully it evolves. At Clara Industries,
this belief forms the bedrock of our
growth philosophy. As a company rooted
in industrial manufacturing, we
acknowledge that our operations leave
an imprint — on the environment, on
communities, and on the lives of the
people we employ. That recognition
drives us to pursue progress not just with
ambition, but with care.

We have chosen to view Environmental,
Social, and Governance (ESG) not as an
external requirement, but as an internal
imperative. Rather than isolating ESG into
standalone programs or policies, we are
working to embed its principles into the
DNA of our decision-making — from
product innovation and procurement to
HR practices and boardroom
conversations. This integrated approach
ensures that sustainability isn’t just a goal,
but a guiding mindset — one that
prioritises resilience over speed, and
impact over optics.

Environmental Stewardship:
In the environmental sphere, our actions
are centered on doing more with less —
reducing consumption while amplifying
efficiency and reuse. Over the past year,
we’ve initiated efforts to streamline
production, adopt material recycling
practices, and evaluate our energy
footprint across all units. 
By embracing closed-loop systems, we
are minimising our waste-to-landfill ratio,
lowering energy consumption, and

reducing emissions per unit of output.

Our long-term ambition is to create
manufacturing systems that are not only
sustainable, but regenerative — where
waste becomes input, and efficiency
drives innovation. Whether through the
gradual integration of renewable energy
sources or better water management
protocols, we remain committed to
making our operations greener and more
future-ready. These are not isolated
initiatives, but building blocks of a culture
that aims to thrive without harming the
ecosystem it operates within.

Social Responsibility: 
At the heart of  Clara’s  operations  is  our 
belief in people. We view every team
member as a stakeholder in our mission,
and every workplace as a space for
safety, inclusion, and growth. Our
recruitment practices are designed to be
meritocratic and inclusive, offering equal
opportunity across backgrounds, skill sets,
and roles. We’ve invested in
comprehensive training modules to up skill
our workforce and keep them aligned
with the evolving demands of the industry.

Beyond hiring and training, our focus on
well-being and safety remains
unwavering. Our facilities meet rigorous
health and safety standards, and we
continually seek to improve them through
audits, feedback mechanisms, and
employee engagement programs. We
strive to foster a culture where mutual
respect, open communication, and
accountability are not just encouraged —
but expected.

OUR ESG PRINCIPLES:
Driving Responsible Growth



Governance Excellence: 
Clara Industries believes that good governance is the invisible foundation of sustainable
growth. Our systems are designed to uphold transparency, ethical conduct, and financial
integrity. From robust internal audit mechanisms and third-party assessments to ongoing
board oversight, we strive to maintain high standards of compliance and ethical
leadership. Every strategic decision undergoes thorough evaluation, not just for financial
merit but for its broader impact on stakeholders and society.

We continue to refine our risk management frameworks to better anticipate and respond
to disruptions — whether operational, regulatory, or environmental. Our governance
approach is dynamic, forward-looking, and deeply rooted in the values of responsibility,
accountability, and trust.

The Road Ahead: 
We do not view ESG as a checklist to be ticked off at the end of each financial year.
Instead, we see it as an evolving journey that defines who we are — and who we strive to
become. As we move forward, Clara Industries is committed to strengthening ESG
integration across all verticals, ensuring that every product we deliver, every policy we
draft, and every goal we chase reflects our purpose-driven ethos.

Responsible growth, for us, is not just a competitive advantage — it is the standard we
hold ourselves to. It is the promise we make to our stakeholders, and the legacy we aim
to build for the next generation.



VISION

MISSION

At Clara Industries Limited, our vision is to emerge as a global leader in sustainable
and innovative packaging solutions that not only meet the evolving needs of
industries and consumers but also contribute meaningfully to a cleaner, more
responsible future. We envision a world where packaging plays a central role in
advancing circular economies, minimizing environmental impact, and enhancing
product value across sectors. By continuously investing in technology, design, and
ethical practices, we aim to set new standards in quality, safety, and sustainability.
Our long-term goal is to transform conventional manufacturing into a purposeful and
planet-positive enterprise — one that inspires trust, empowers communities, and
stands as a symbol of responsible industrial growth. Through each milestone, we are
committed to leaving behind a legacy not just of scale, but of conscious impact.

At Clara Industries Limited, our mission is
to provide high-quality, sustainable
packaging solutions that serve both
industry and the environment. We strive for
operational excellence, continuous
innovation, and responsible manufacturing
across all our verticals — from flexible
packaging to recycled materials and food
wraps. By empowering our people,
embracing ethical practices, and focusing
on long-term value, we aim to contribute
meaningfully to customers, communities,
and the planet. We are committed to
reducing our ecological footprint while
enhancing product performance and
reliability. Every decision we make is
guided by our dedication to quality,
sustainability, and shared progress.



COMPANY GOALS

At Clara Industries Limited, our goals are defined by a vision of sustainable industrial
excellence, innovation-driven growth, and global impact. We strive to become a
leading force in the packaging  sector by expanding our manufacturing capabilities,
diversifying our product lines, and enhancing our presence across domestic and
international markets. A key priority is to triple our production capacity over the next
few years while reducing our environmental footprint through greener technologies,
energy-efficient processes, and closed-loop recycling systems. We are committed to
continually upgrading our infrastructure and investing in automation, R&D, and
product innovation to meet the evolving demands of our customers. In parallel, we
aim to strengthen our workforce by fostering a culture of safety, skill development,
and inclusive opportunity. Whether it’s through launching newer product verticals like
cling film and self-adhesive tapes or advancing our sustainability agenda, every goal
we pursue is tied to our larger mission: to create long-term value for our
stakeholders, contribute positively to industry standards, and set new benchmarks for
responsible manufacturing in India and beyond.
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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the 4  Annual General Meeting of the Members of Clara
Industries Limited will be held on Sunday 28  September, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. at Unit no.3,
Khasra No.219, Village Padli Khushalpur, Dehradun Road Tehsil and District Saharanpur UP
247001 IN , to transact the following businesses: -

th

th

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To  consider  and  adopt  the  Audited  Financial Statements of  the  Company  for  the     
   financial  year  ended 31st March, 2025, including the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st
   March, 2025,  the  Statement  of  Profit  and  Loss for the  financial year ended on that
   date and the  reports  of  the  Board  of  Directors  (“the Board”)  and Auditors thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2. Approval for continuation of Mr. Manmohan Singh (DIN: 07790507) as  an Independent 
    Director  of  the  Company,  notwithstanding    his    attaining   the   age   of  75 years.
    To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
    “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable  
    provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder, read 
    with  Schedule  IV  to  the   Act  and  the applicable    provisions    of  the SEBI (Listing
    Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements) Regulations,  2015, including any statutory
    modification(s)  or  re-enactment(s)  thereof, and in accordance with Regulation 17(1A)
    of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the consent of the Members of the Company be and
    is   hereby   accorded   for   continuation  of  Mr. Manmohan  Singh  (DIN: 07790507).

    RESOLVED  FURTHER  THAT  the  Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
    authorised  to  do  all  such  acts,  deeds,  matters  and  things  as  may  be necessary,
    desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

3. Appointment  of  M/s  Verma  Ashish &  Company, Practicing Company Secretaries, as
    Secretarial Auditors of the Company for FY [2025-26] to [2029-30]
    To consider  and,  if  thought   fit,  to   pass  the  following  resolution  as  an  Ordinary
    Resolution:
    “RESOLVED  THAT  pursuant  to  the  provisions  of  Section 204 and other applicable
    provisions,  if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment
    and  Remuneration  of  Managerial  Personnel) Rules, 2014, and in terms of Regulation
    24A  of  the  SEBI (Listing  Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
    2015,  as amended from time to time, consent of the Members of the Company be and
    is   hereby   accorded  for   the  appointment  of   M/s  Verma  Ashish  &  Company, 
    Practicing  Company  Secretary  (Peer Review Certificate No. 2331/2022),  a  Sole
    Proprietorship  Firm,  as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial
    year   2025-26   to  2029-30, to   conduct   the   Secretarial    Audit   and   issue    the  
    Secretarial  Audit Report in Form MR-3 and the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 
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Registered Office: 
127/1,Gram Simbhalka, Junardar
Paragna, Tehsil and District Saharanpur
Uttar Pradesh-247001 

By order of the Board of Directors
For Clara Industries Limited

Sd/- 
Parry Kukreja 

Managing Director 
DIN: 06649401

Place : Saharanpur 
Date : September 06 , 2025

    as required under SEBI  LODR Regulations,  at a remuneration  as  may  be determined 
    by the Board of Directors in consultation with them.

    RESOLVED  FURTHER  THAT  the  Board  of  Directors  of  the  Company (including any
    Committee thereof)  be  and is hereby authorised to finalize the terms of appointment,
    revise   remuneration  as  may be deemed appropriate, and to do all such acts, deeds,
    matters and things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
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NOTES
1.  A  Member  entitled  to  attend  and  vote  at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
    attend and vote on a poll instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a Member
    of the Company.  The Instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited with the Company
    at  its  Registered  Office,  not  less  than  48  hours  before  the  commencement  of   the
    Meeting.  Proxies   submitted  on  behalf  of  limited  companies,  societies,   etc., must be
    supported  by  an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable. Pursuant to Section 105
    of  the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy, on behalf of not more than fifty
    members,  holding in  aggregate not  more  than ten percent  of the total share capital of
    the Company, carrying voting rights. Members holding more  than ten percent of the total
    share capital of  the Company,  carrying  voting  rights  may  appoint a single person as a
    proxy,  who  shall  not  act  as  a proxy for any other Member. Attendance Slip, Proxy Form
    and  the  Route  Map  along  with  a  prominent landmark of the venue of the Meeting are
    annexed with this Annual Report.

2. The  Statement  pursuant  to Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013 (Act), setting out the
    material facts  concerning  Item Nos. 2 and 3 set  out  above  is  enclosed  along  with the
    details  under  Regulations  36(3)  of  the  Securities  and Exchange Board of India (Listing
    Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements)  Regulations,   2015   and  clause  1.2.5 of the
    Secretarial Standard -2] in  respect of directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed
    at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

3. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the
    meeting  and  ending with  the  conclusion of  the meeting, members would be entitled to
    inspect proxies lodged, at any time during the business hours 3  of the Company, provided
    not less than 3 days written notice is given to the Company.

4. Members/Proxies attending  the  Meeting must carry with them, duly signed and stamped
    Attendance Slip and deposit it at the entrance of the venue of the Meeting. Members are
    also  requested  to carry their copy of the Annual Report of the Company, to the Meeting.

5. The  Register  of  Member  and  Transfer  Books  will remain closed from Thursday, the 06  th

    day  of  September, 2025  to  Thursday,  the  28   day  of  September,  2025  (both  days    th

    inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

6. Corporate  Members  intending  to  send  their  authorised  representatives  to  attend the
    meeting  are  requested  to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their
    representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

7. The.  notice   is   being   sent  to  all  members,  whose  names  appear  on the Register of
    Members/List of beneficial owners.

8. In  case  shares  are  jointly  held,  this  form  should  be completed and signed (as per the
    specimen  signature  registered  with  the  company)  by  the  first  named  member and in
    his/her absence, by the next named member.
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9. Copy  of  relevant  documents  referred  to  in  this  notice  are  open for inspection at the
    registered  office of the Company an all working days, except holidays between 11.00 A.M
    to 2.00 P.M upto the date of declaration of the results.

10.Any  member  desirous  of  getting  any  information  on  the  accounts of the Company is
    required  to  forward  his/her  queries  at  least  7  days  prior  to  the  meeting so that the
    required information can be made available at the meeting.

11. Members are requested to intimate change in their address immediately to M/s. Bigshare
    Services  Private Limited, the  Company’s  Registrar  and  Share  Transfer  Agents,  at their
    office  at  Office  No  S6-2,  Pinnacle   Business   Park,  6 ,    Mahakali  Caves  Rd,  next to th

    Ahura Centre, Shanti Nagar, Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400093

12.Pursuant to  SEBI Circular, the Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested
    to  submit  self  attested  copy  of  PAN  at  the  time  of  sending  their  request  for share
    transfer/transmission of name/transposition of name.

13.Members  holding shares in physical  form in the same  set of names under different folios  
    are   requested  to  apply   for   consolidation  of  such  folios  along  with  relevant  Share
    Certificates  to   M/s.  Bigshare  Services  Private  Limited,  Registrar  and  Share  Transfer
    Agents of the Company, at their address given above.

14.Members  who  hold  shares  in dematerialized  form are requested to write their Client ID
    and  DP ID  and those who hold shares  in physical form  are requested to write their Folio
    number   in  the  attendance  slip  for   attending  the  meeting.  In  case  of  joint  holders
    attending  the meeting,  only such  joint holder who is higher  in the order of names will be
    entitled to vote.

15.For  members  who have not  registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice
    of  the 4  Annual General Meeting of the  Company inter alia  indicating the process andth

    manner  of e-voting  along  with  Attendance Slip  and   Proxy Form  is  being  sent  in  the
    permitted mode.  Members may also note that Notice of 4th Annual General Meeting and
    Annual report  for  2024-25 will be  available on  company’s website: www.clara.co.in for
    their download.

16.Members  who have not registered  their email addresses so  far are requested to register
    their  e‐mail address  for  receiving  all communications  including  annual report,  notices,
    circulars etc. from the company electronically.

17.M/s.  Verma  Ashish & Co. (Proprietor  Mr. Ashish  Verma)  Practicing Company Secretary,
    (C.P No. 22530) has  been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize voting at the AGM in
    a  fair  and  transparent  manner.  The  Scrutinizer  will  submit,  not  later  than  2  days of
    conclusion  of  the AGM,  a  consolidated  Scrutinizer’s  Report  of  the  total votes cast in
    favour  or  against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company or a person authorized by him
    in writing,  who  shall  countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

18.Since  Ballot form is  provided to the members pursuant to the provisions of section 108 of
    the  companies Act, 2013,  read with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
    2014, voting by show of hands are not allowed
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19.The  Chairman  shall,  at  the  AGM,  at the end of  discussion on  the resolutions on which
    voting  is  to be held,  allow  voting with the  assistance  of  scrutinizer,  by  use  of  “Ballot
    Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM.

20.The  Results  declared  along   with    the  Scrutinizer’s  Report  shall  be   placed  on   the 
    Company’s  website  www.clara.co.in.  The   same  will  be  communicated  to  the   stock
    exchanges  where  the   company  shares  are  listed  viz.  The  Bombay  Stock  Exchange.

Registered Office: 
127/1,Gram Simbhalka, Junardar
Paragna, Tehsil and District Saharanpur
Uttar Pradesh-247001 

By order of the Board of Directors
For Clara Industries Limited

Sd/- 
Parry Kukreja 

Managing Director 
DIN: 06649401

Place : Saharanpur 
Date : September 06 , 2025

http://www.clara.co.in/
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”):

ITEM NO: 2

TO APPROVE THE CONTINUATION OF MR. MANMOHAN SINGH AS AN INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY, NOTWITHSTANDING HIS ATTAINING THE AGE OF 75
YEARS:

Mr. Manmohan Singh DIN: 07790507 was appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company for a term of [5 years] w.e.f. 28/09/2021. He has attained the age of 75 years
during his tenure.
As per Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, no listed entity shall appoint
or continue the directorship of a Non-Executive Director who has attained the age of 75
years unless a special resolution is passed to that effect and the explanatory statement
annexed to the notice indicates the justification for such continuation.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors at their respective
meetings held on 06/09/2025, after due assessment, have recommended continuation of
Mr. Manmohan Singh as an Independent Director of the Company till the expiry of his
current term.
Justification for continuation:

Mr. Singh has rich experience of 35years in pharmaceutical industry, and his guidance
has been invaluable in strengthening the Company’s governance and strategic
direction.
His expertise and independent judgement continue to be beneficial for the Company.
He fulfils all conditions specified for Independent Directors under the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the passing of this Special Resolution.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives, except Mr. Manmohan
Singh, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

ITEM NO: 3

TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF M/S VERMA ASHISH & COMPANY, PRACTICING
COMPANY SECRETARIES, AS SECRETARIAL AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2025-26 TO 2029-30:

Appointment of Secretarial Auditors (Ordinary Resolution) Pursuant to the provisions of
Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, as amended, every listed entity is required to
appoint a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary or firm of Company Secretaries as Secretarial
Auditor for a term of five years with the approval of shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting. Accordingly, at its meeting held on September 06, 2025, the Board of
Directors, after considering the expertise and experience of Verma Ashish & Company, Peer
Review No. 2331/2022), who were the Secretarial auditors for the year 2024 and based on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has proposed their appointment as the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The proposed appointment is for a term of five
consecutive years, commencing from the conclusion of the 4th Annual General Meeting until
the conclusion of the 9th Annual General Meeting, subject to shareholder’s approval.
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DP Id* Client Id*

Regd. Folio No. No. of Shares

CLARA INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L25209UP2021PLC151537

127/1 Gram Simbhalka Junardar, Paragna, Teshil and District Saharanpur UP
247001 IN

4  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGth

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(Members or their proxies are requested to present this form for admission, duly signed in
accordance with their specimen signatures registered with the Company.)

*Applicable for shares held in electronic form

Name(s) and address of the shareholder / Proxy in full: _______________________________

I/we hereby record my/our presence at the 4th Annual General Meeting of the Company
being held on Sunday, 28   September, 2025 at 4:00 P.M.. at Clara Industries Limited Unit
No.3 Khasra No. 219, Padli Khushalpur, Dehradun Road Saharanpur.

 

th

Please (✔) in the box

MEMBER                PROXY

_______________________________
Signature of Shareholder / Proxy
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PROXY FORM
FORM NO. MGT-11

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the
Companies Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

CIN: L25209UP2021PLC151537
Name of the Company: CLARA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Registered Office: 127/1 Gram Simbhalka Junardar, Paragna, Teshil and District
Saharanpur, UP, 247001 IN

Name of the member(s):

Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No. / Client Id:

DP Id:

I/ We, being the member(s) of ……………..…. shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint

1.  Name:  
    Address:   
    E-mail Id:  
    Signature:__________________ or failing him/her

2. Name: 
   Address: 
   E-mail Id: 
   Signature:__________________ or failing him/her

3. Name: 
   Address: 
   E-mail Id: 
   Signature:__________________ or failing him/her

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 4th
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Sunday, 28   September, 2025 at
4:00 P.M.. at Clara Industries Limited Unit No.3 Khasra No. 219, Padli Khushalpur, Dehradun
Road, Saharanpur and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated on the following page:

th
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Item No. Description of Resolutions

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1
To adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company for the Financial Year ended
31st March, 2025 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2
To approve the continuation of Mr. Manmohan Singh as an Independent Director
of the Company, notwithstanding his attaining the age of 75 years.

3
To approve the appointment of M/s Verma Ashish & Company, Practicing
Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2025-26 to 2029-30.

Signed this …..…… day of ………………….......... 2025

Signature of shareholder(s)

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

Notes: 

1.  This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
    Registered Office  of the  Company,  not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
    the Meeting.

2. Any  alteration or correction made to  this  Proxy form   must be initialed by the signatory/
    signatories. 
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POLLING PAPER
FORM NO. MGT-12

[Pursuant to Section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21(1)(c) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Sr. No. Particulars Details

1
Name and Registered Address of the Sole /
First named Shareholders

2 Name(s) of the Joint Holder(s), (if any)

3
Registered Folio Number / DP ID No.* *
(Applicable to Investors holding shares in
dematerialized Form)

4 Number of Share(s) held

I / We hereby exercise my / our votes in respect of the Resolutions set out in the Notice dated 14th
August, 2025 as set out below to be passed by the means of Ballot by giving my / our assent or
dissent to the said Resolutions by placing the tick (✔) mark at the appropriate boxes below (tick in
the both boxes will render the ballot invalid).

Place: Saharanpur
Date: (Signature of Shareholder)

Sr. No. Particulars
Type of

Resolution
No. of

Shares

(FOR) I / We
assent to the

Resolution

(AGAINST) I /
We dissent to
the Resolution

1

To adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the
Company for the Financial Year ended 31st
March, 2025 together with the Report of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Ordinary

2

To approve the continuation of Mr. Manmohan
Singh as an Independent Director of the
Company, notwithstanding his attaining the
age of 75 years.

Special

3

To approve the appointment of M/s Verma
Ashish & Company, Practicing Company
Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2025-26 to
2029-30.

Special
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ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE OF THE
4  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGTH

CLARA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

UNIT NO.3, KHASRA NO. 219, PADLI KHUSHALPUR, DEHRADUN ROAD
SAHARANPUR-247001

https://maps.app.goo.gl/bMNJ8yTaEfpU41PA7
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Dear Shareholders, 

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Clara Industries Limited (“the Company”) is pleased
to present the Fourth Annual Report, along with the audited financial statements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025.

 

For FY 2024–25, the Company recorded a total income of ₹1,103.78 lakhs, with revenue
from operations at ₹1,077.89 lakhs. Profit Before Tax stood at ₹282.97 lakhs, while Profit
After Tax was ₹189.03 lakhs, reflecting disciplined cost management and operational
stability during a challenging year.

Below is the detailed financial statement:
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PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
During the financial year 2024–25, Clara Industries Limited navigated a dynamic business
environment marked by fluctuating input costs and moderated demand trends. Despite
these challenges, the Company delivered a total income of ₹1,103.78 lakhs, compared to
₹1,277.12 lakhs in the previous year. Revenue from operations stood at ₹1,077.89 lakhs, while
Profit Before Tax was ₹282.97 lakhs, and Net Profit After Tax amounted to ₹189.03 lakhs.

Although the topline performance reflected a temporary slowdown due to market
conditions and the strategic decision to prioritise consolidation over aggressive expansion,
the Company continued to strengthen its fundamentals. Disciplined cost management,
process efficiency improvements, and operational alignment across business units ensured
profitability and liquidity stability.

Clara Industries remained committed to its strategic roadmap, which included key
investments in capacity expansion for future growth. The procurement of advanced woven
sack manufacturing machinery during the year marked a significant step toward
diversification, with the operational benefits expected to materialize in FY 2025–26.

The management remains optimistic about the coming fiscal year, supported by an
improved demand outlook, ongoing efficiency initiatives, and a strong product portfolio
across packaging films, flexible packaging, food wrap solutions, PP mats, and recycled
granules.

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
The official website of your Company, www.clara.co.in, serves as a comprehensive
information hub, reflecting Clara Industries’ business operations and commitment to
transparency. The homepage provides an overview of our core business segments, product
portfolio, and value-driven solutions.

The website also hosts an extensive repository of investor-related information, including
annual financial results, shareholding patterns, details of the Board of Directors and senior
management, committee compositions, corporate policies, and governance frameworks. In
addition, it features updates on the Company’s key initiatives, strategic developments, and
sustainability practices.

All disclosures mandated under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are promptly uploaded to ensure
compliance and enable stakeholders to access accurate and timely information.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the financial year 2024–25, the Company undertook strategic measures to
strengthen its capital base and enhance shareholder value. The Authorized Share Capital
was increased from ₹11.00 crore (comprising 1.10 crore equity shares of ₹10/- each) to
₹21.00 crore (comprising 2.10 crore equity shares of ₹10/- each) by creating an additional 1
crore equity shares of ₹10/- each.

Further, with the approval of shareholders, the Company issued 1,65,38,320 fully paid-up
Bonus Equity Shares of ₹10/- each, aggregating to ₹16.54 crore, in the ratio of 4:1 (four fully 

https://www.clara.co.in/
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paid-up equity shares for every one equity share held), by capitalizing amounts from
retained earnings. These Bonus Shares carry the same voting rights and rank pari passu in
all respects with the existing equity shares.

For shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form, the Bonus Shares were credited
directly to their respective demat accounts, while physical share certificates were issued
within prescribed timelines. No fractional entitlements arose from the bonus issue; any
fractions were ignored and rounded down to the nearest integer.

Post these changes, the Issued, Subscribed, and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company
stands at ₹20,67,29,000, divided into 2,06,72,900 equity shares of ₹10/- each, as on March
31, 2025.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year under review, there was no change in the composition of the Board of
Directors.

Ms. Nidhi Varun Kumar resigned from the position of Company Secretary of the Company
with effect from January 3, 2025. 

Subsequently, the Board appointed Ms. Pooja as the Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer at the board meeting held on January 4, 2025.

Further, none of the Directors are disqualified from being appointed or re-appointed as
Directors of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, there were no changes in the nature of the
Company’s business activities. The operations continued to align with the core objectives
and strategic direction established by the Board, ensuring stability and consistency in our
business model.

ANNUAL RETURN
In compliance with Section 92 and Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule
12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of
the Company in Form MGT-7 is available on the Company’s website at www.clara.co.in.

GENERAL RESERVES
In accordance with applicable Accounting Standards, the Profit After Tax has been
retained under the ‘Reserve & Surplus’ section. Accordingly, no amount has been transferred
to the General Reserve during the financial year.

BOARD EVALUATION
The Board of Directors conducted its annual performance evaluation in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. This comprehensive evaluation covered the
performance of the Board as a whole, its various Committees, and individual Directors.
Inputs were sought from all Directors based on defined criteria, including the Board’s 

https://www.clara.co.in/
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composition and structure, the effectiveness of its processes, quality of information shared,
and overall functioning.

Based on the feedback and analysis, the Board concluded that its performance during the
year was effective and aligned with the evaluation framework, supporting the Company’s
growth-oriented objectives. The Committees were also found to be functioning
independently and efficiently, fulfilling their roles as mandated under the Act.

Furthermore, each Director discharged their duties and responsibilities diligently, as
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, and contributed meaningfully through their
experience, knowledge, and strategic insights in navigating both opportunities and
challenges faced by the Company during the year.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES
None of the employees of the Company received remuneration in excess of the limits
prescribed under Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 during the financial year.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has not invited or accepted any fixed deposits
from the public in accordance with the provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the said
provisions are not applicable to the Company.

DIVIDEND
During the year under review, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held in June 2024,
declared an Interim Dividend of Rs. 20,67,290/- on the Equity Shares of the Company. The
said interim dividend has already been paid to the eligible shareholders of the Company.

Further, after considering the Company’s performance, the need to conserve resources for
future growth, and its long-term expansion plans, the Board of Directors has deemed it
prudent not to recommend any final dividend on the Equity Shares for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025.

Accordingly, the total dividend distributed during the financial year 2024-25 amounts to Rs.
20,67,290/-, representing the interim dividend declared and paid.

In terms of Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, only the top 1000 listed entities based on market capitalization are
required to formulate and adopt a Dividend Distribution Policy. Since the Company does
not fall within the said threshold as on March 31, 2024, the requirement to adopt a Dividend
Distribution Policy is not applicable to the Company.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company confirms that it has
received necessary declarations from all Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the
Act, affirming that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of
the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
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Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

Each Independent Director has submitted a declaration confirming that:

They continue to fulfill the criteria of independence as specified under Section 149(6) of
the Act, read with Schedule IV, and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations;
They are not aware of any circumstances that exist or are anticipated which could
impair or impact their ability to discharge duties effectively, as required under
Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations;
They are not debarred from holding the office of Director pursuant to any SEBI order or
the order of any other such authority; and
There has been no change in circumstances that may affect their status as Independent
Directors.

Additionally, all Independent Directors have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct
prescribed for Independent Directors under Schedule IV of the Act. The Board is of the
opinion that all Independent Directors possess the requisite qualifications, expertise,
integrity, and proficiency as required under applicable laws and continue to be
independent of the management.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
In accordance with Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Para VII(1) of
Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the
Company was held on March 5, 2024, without the presence of Non-Independent Directors
and members of the management.

During the meeting, the Independent Directors, inter alia, reviewed and discussed the
following:

Performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the overall functioning of the Board;
Performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of both
Executive and Non-Executive Directors; and
The quality, quantity, and timeliness of the flow of information between the
management and the Board, which is essential for the Board to discharge its functions
effectively.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All contracts, arrangements, and transactions entered into by the Company with related
parties during the financial year 2024-25 were in the ordinary course of business and
conducted at arm’s length. The Company did not enter into any material related party
transactions, as defined under its Related Party Transactions Policy (“RPT Policy”), during the
year. Accordingly, the disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. All applicable related
party transactions were duly reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee and the
Board, as required. Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-24 on Related Party Transactions have
been provided in the notes to the standalone financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company did not make any loans, 
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SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
During the year under review, the Company did not have any subsidiary, joint venture, or
associate company as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has a duly
constituted CSR Committee comprising Mr. Avdesh Kamboj (DIN: 09526364) as
Chairperson, Mrs. Parry Kukreja (DIN: 06649401), and Mr. Manmohan Singh (DIN: 07790507)
as Members. The Committee’s terms of reference are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report, and the CSR Policy is available on the Company’s website at: CSR
Policy.

The Company views social responsibility as an integral part of its business and strives to
deploy its CSR budget for the benefit of society and the environment. For FY 2024–25,
based on the average net profits of FY 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24, the prescribed
CSR spend was ₹8.67 lakh. Out of this, the Company spent ₹6.32 lakh during the year in line
with the recommendations of the CSR Committee and the approval of the Board. The
unspent amount of ₹2.35 lakh was subsequently utilized in accordance with Schedule VII of
the Act, by contributing to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund (PMNRF).

The Annual Report on CSR activities for FY 2024–25 is annexed as Annexure B and forms
part of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company, being listed on the Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) Platform, is exempt
from the provisions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 15 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Accordingly, no
Corporate Governance Report is provided in this Annual Report. Nevertheless, the Company
voluntarily adheres to the majority of the prescribed corporate governance practices.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire profit for the financial year 2024-25
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as at March 31, 2025.

provide any guarantees, or make any investments as specified under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

CREDIT RATING
During the year under review, the Company did not have any outstanding instruments
requiring a credit rating.

BOARD MEETINGS
During the year under review, the Board of the Company convened meetings on May 25,
2024; June 6, 2024; June 12, 2024; July 8, 2024; September 16, 2024; November 14, 2024;
December 30, 2024; January 3, 2025; January 4, 2025; February 10, 2025; March 5, 2025;
and March 8, 2025. The interval between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed the
limit of one hundred and twenty days, in compliance with Section 173 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
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DIRECTOR’S ATTENDANCE RECORD
The last Annual General Meeting was held on September 29th 2024. The attendance
record of the Directors at the Board Meeting during the year ended on March 31, 2025, and
at the last Annual General Meeting is as under:

Name of Directors Number of Board Meetings
Attended During The Year

Whether Attended Last
Annual General Meeting

Mr. Nikhil Kukreja 12 out of 12 Yes

Ms. Parry Kukreja 12 out of 12 Yes

Ms. Priyanka Mediratta 10 out of 12 Yes

Mr. Avdesh Kumar Kamboj 12 out of 12 Yes

Mr. Man Mohan Singh 12 out of 12 Yes

BOARD COMMITTEES
In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, provisions
on Corporate Governance the Board of Directors of the Company had constituted following
Committees. The details are as under:

1.Audit Committee
2.Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
3.Shareholder’s & Investor’s Grievance Committee 
4. Internal Complaint Committee
5.Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The composition of various committees are as follows:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per the guidelines set out in the
Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015
with the stock exchanges read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The detail of
the Committee is as follows:

Members DIN and Membership No. Designation

Mr. Avdesh Kumar Kamboj Chairman

Mr. Man Mohan Singh Member

Mr. Nikhil Kukreja Member

09526364

07790507

06649387

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, as per  the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
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Members DIN and Membership No. Designation

Mr. Man Mohan Singh Chairman

Mr. Avdesh Kumar Kamboj Member

Ms. Priyanka Mediratta Member

09526364

07790507

00494136

STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP AND INVESTOR’S GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

The Committee is in charge of looking after grievances of Investors and Shareholders. The
details of the committee is as follows:

Members DIN and Membership No. Designation

Mr. Avdesh Kumar Kamboj Chairman

Mr. Man Mohan Singh Member

Mr. Nikhil Kukreja Member

09526364

07790507

06649387

19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation 2015, with the
object of Remuneration & Nomination Committee is to recommend / review the
remuneration of Managing Directors / Wholetime Directors. The remuneration policy of the
Company is directed towards rewarding performance and attracting new talents /
retaining them. While deciding the remuneration, the Committee considers the financial
position of the Company, trend in the Industry, Appointee’s qualification, experience, past
performance, past remuneration etc.

INTERNAL COMPLAINT COMMITTEE

The Committee is in charge of looking after grievances of internal complaints of the
company. The details of the Committee is as follows:

Members Designation

Ms. Parry Kukreja Chairman

Ms. Pooja Member

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Pal Member

Mr. Vidya Bhushan Tyagi Member

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The Committee is in charge of looking after all the CSR activities of the company. The
details of the Committee is as follows:
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Members DIN and Membership No. Designation

Mr. Avdesh Kumar Kamboj Chairman

Ms. Parry Kukreja Member

Mr. Man Mohan Singh Member

09526364

06649401

06649387

STATUTORY AUDITORS
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
the rules made thereunder, M/s. Gupta Agarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 329001E), were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the
1st Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on September 30, 2022, for a term of five years,
commencing from the Financial Year 2022-23 up to the conclusion of the AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2027.

The Statutory Auditors have issued their report on the financial statements of the Company
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. The report forms an integral part of this
Annual Report. The observations made in the Auditor’s Report, if any, are self-explanatory
and do not call for further comments. The Auditor’s Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation, or adverse remark.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Board of Directors appointed M/s. Verma Ashish & Co. (Peer Reviewed Firm) (Membership
No. 59867) to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-
25.The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, is annexed
herewith as Annexure – A to this Report. The Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation, adverse remark, or disclaimer for the period under review.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
The maintenance of cost records as prescribed by the Central Government under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company, as its business
activities do not fall within the categories specified under the said provisions.

REPORT ON FRAUDS U/S 143 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and the Secretarial Auditor have not
reported any instances of fraud committed in the Company by its officers or employees to
the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act. Accordingly, no disclosure is required
under Section 134(3)(ca) of the Act.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFTER THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
Except as disclosed elsewhere in this Annual Report, there have been no material changes
or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the
financial year 2024-25 and the date of signing of this Report.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with the applicable rules, the particulars relating to conservation of energy and technology
absorption are not furnished, as the nature of the Company’s operations during the year
under review does not necessitate such disclosures. Further, the Company has not entered
into any technology transfer agreement, nor were there any foreign exchange earnings or
outgo during the financial year.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)
During the year under review, the provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
were not applicable to the Company, as no amount was required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government. The
Company has designated its Company Secretary as the Nodal Officer for all IEPF-related
matters.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS
During the year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by regulators,
courts, or tribunals which could impact the going concern status of the Company or its
future operations.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has formulated and implemented a Risk Management Policy to identify the
risks associated with its business and to outline measures for their mitigation. A structured
framework is in place for risk management, which includes the identification, analysis, and
assessment of potential risks, evaluation of their probable impact, and formulation as well
as implementation of appropriate mitigation strategies. While it is not possible to eliminate
all business risks entirely, the Company endeavours to minimize their impact on its
operations to the extent feasible.
The Company is not mandatorily required to constitute a Risk Management Committee.
However, the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee periodically review and evaluate
the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management system.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS INCLUDING INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company has established an adequate internal control system, commensurate with the
size, scale, and complexity of its operations. These controls are designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the accuracy and reliability of financial and operational
information, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, safeguarding of assets
against unauthorized use, execution of transactions with proper authorization, and
adherence to corporate policies. During the year under review, no material weaknesses or
significant observations were reported with respect to the adequacy or effectiveness of
such internal controls.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
As required under Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a
separate section of this Annual Report. It provides detailed insights into the industry
structure and developments, financial and operational performance, and other material
developments during the financial year under review.
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VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
In accordance with Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has
adopted a Whistle Blower Policy as part of its vigil mechanism. The policy provides a secure
avenue for Directors and employees to report concerns regarding any actual or suspected
violation of the Company’s code of conduct, business principles, or applicable laws.

The vigil mechanism ensures adequate safeguards against victimization of individuals who
raise concerns and also provides for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee in exceptional circumstances. The Company Secretary has been designated as
the officer responsible for the effective implementation of the policy and for addressing
complaints received under it.

During the year under review, no complaints were reported under the vigil mechanism.

CODE OF CONDUCT 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct pursuant to Regulation 9 of the SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, to regulate, monitor, and report trading by
Designated Persons. The Code is aimed at preventing the misuse of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information (“UPSI”) by Designated Persons and their immediate relatives.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures, if any;
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently. They have also made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the
end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;
the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;
the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company,
and such controls are adequate and operating effectively; and
the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws, and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE
The Company is committed to providing a safe, respectful, and conducive work environment
for all its employees and associates. In accordance with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the
Company has duly constituted an Internal Committee to address complaints, if any.
During the financial year under review, no complaints were received under the said Act.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable
Secretarial Standards on Board Meetings (SS-1)  and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the 
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ANY PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016
There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which may have any material impact on the business or
operations of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
The Management of Clara Industries Limited recognizes that its workforce is the most
valuable asset and a key driver of the Company’s success. With an employee-centric
approach, the Company is committed to providing a secure, inclusive, and stimulating
workplace that enhances productivity and fosters professional growth.

The Company continually invests in its employees by upgrading skills, refining expertise, and
nurturing leadership abilities through relevant learning and development programs. Diversity
within the workforce is valued, and the Company strives to leverage it as a strength to
enhance corporate capabilities.

Management actively promotes teamwork and a self-motivated work culture that
encourages comprehensive employee development. To reinforce its human capital and
attract, nurture, and retain exceptional talent, Clara Industries Limited has established
robust human resource policies designed to foster a positive and growth-oriented work
environment.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors of Clara Industries Limited comprises highly accomplished
professionals with diverse expertise and extensive industry experience, contributing
effectively to the Company’s strategic growth and governance framework. The composition
of the Board is fully compliant with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 17
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company’s  Articles  of  Association,  and  other  applicable  laws,  while   adhering  to  best
governance practices.

As of March 31, 2025, the Board consisted of five (5) Directors:

One (1) Managing Director
One (1) Executive Director
One (1) Non-Executive Director
Two (2) Independent Directors

The Chairperson of the Board is a Promoter Executive Director, and none of the Non-
Executive Directors were involved in the day-to-day operations of the Company during the
year under review.

At Clara Industries, we believe that a well-diversified and competent Board fosters a culture
of responsible leadership, providing long-term vision, strategic guidance, and robust
governance standards. The Board plays an active role in evaluating the Company’s strategic
direction, overseeing management policies, and ensuring their effective implementation. All
actions and decisions of the Board remain aligned with the Company’s mission, values, and
stakeholder interests. 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in accordance with Section 118 of the Companies
Act, 2013.
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As per the Articles of Association, the Board shall consist of not less than three (3) Directors
and not more than fifteen (15) Directors, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the Board as on the date of this Report are set forth below:
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

This Report contains forward-looking statements relating to the Company’s objectives,
projections, and expectations, which may differ materially from actual results due to
economic conditions, market fluctuations, and changes in Government policies or
regulations. The Company assumes no obligation to update or revise such statements in
light of future developments.

Your Directors express their sincere gratitude to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and other
Central and State Government authorities for their guidance and support. The Board also
places  on  record   its   deep   appreciation  for  the  dedicated  efforts  of  the  Company’s
employees at all levels, whose commitment has been integral to the Company’s
performance and growth. Further, your Directors thank the Company’s clients, vendors,
bankers, and advisors for their continued trust and support.

In conclusion, your Directors thank the members of the Company for their continued support
and confidence, and look forward to your ongoing patronage in achieving greater success.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Parry Kukreja
Managing Director

DIN: 06649401
Place : Saharanpur 
Date : September 06 , 2025
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FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: There were
no contracts or arrangements or transactions that were not entered at arm’s length basis

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Clara Industries Limited

Sd/-
Parry Kukreja

Managing Director
DIN: 06649401

Place : Saharanpur 
Date : September 06 , 2025
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

 FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2025 ST
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

Date: 06/09/2025
Ref: SA/01/2024-25/CLARA 

To, 

The Members, 
Clara Industries Limited 
CIN: L25209UP2021PLC151537
127/1 Gram Simbhalka Junardar Paragna
Tehsil and District Saharanpur,
Saharanpur, Uttar Pradesh 247001 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good Corporate Governance practice by Clara Industries Limited
(CIN: L25209UP2021PLC151537) (hereinafter called “the Company”). The Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Forms and Returns
filed with regulatory authorities, and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, generally complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to reporting made
hereinafter: 

I herewith report that maintenance of proper and updated Books, Papers, Minutes Books,
filing of Forms and Returns with applicable regulatory authorities and maintaining other
records is responsibility of management and of the Company. Our responsibility is to verify
the content of the documents produced before us, make objective evaluation of the
content in respect of compliance and report thereon. We have examined on test check
basis, the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and produced before us for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2025, as per the provisions of: 

    1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

    2.The  Securities  Contracts  (Regulation) Act,   1956 (‘SCRA’)  and  the  rules  made  there 
       under; (not applicable during the period of audit); 

    3.The  Depositories  Act,  1996  and  the  Regulations  and  Bye-laws  framed  there  under 
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       (to the extent applicable to the Company); 
    
    4.Foreign   Exchange   Management   Act,   1999  and   the   rules  and  regulations Made 
       thereunder to the extent of  Foreign Direct Investment,  Overseas Direct Investment and
       External Commercial Borrowings; 

    5.The  following    Regulations   and  Guide
lines   prescribed   under   the   Securities  and   
       Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015. 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and 
The  Securities and Exchange Board of India  (Buy back of Securities)  Regulations, 1998;

    6.Other specifically applicable laws of the Company during the period under review: 

Income Tax Act, 1961;
Good and Services Tax, 2017;
Indian Contract Act, 1872;
Information Technology Act, 2000; 
The Environment Protection Act, 1986; 
Trademark Act, 1999;
Factories Act, 1948. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
 
    1.Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
 
   2.The Listing Agreements  entered into by the Company with The Bombay Stock Exchange
      or   Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of  India   (Listing  Obligations  and  Disclosures
      Requirements) Regulations,2015; 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the
following observations: 

We further report that 

    1.The  Board of Directors  of  the  Company  is  duly  constituted  with  proper  balance  of  
      Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
      the  composition  of  the Board of Directors  that  took  place  during  the  period  under  
      review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

There has been following notable changes in the constitution of Board during the year
under review i.e. Financial Year 2024-2025. 
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    2.Ms. NIDHI  VARUN  KUMAR  having  Membership  No. 28283  was resigned  as Company 
       Secretary and Compliance Officer with effect from January 3, 2025. 

    3.Ms. Pooja  having  Membership  No.  36167  was  appointed as  Company Secretary and  
       Compliance Officer with effect from January 4, 2025. 

       None   of  the   Directors  of  the  Company  is  disqualified  for  being   appointed / re- 
       appointed  as  directors  of  the  company  as  per  the provisions  of Section 164  of the
       Companies Act, 2013. 
 
    4.As per the  Information provided by  the management, adequate  notices were given to 
       all  directors to schedule  the Board Meetings,  agenda and  detailed notes  on agenda
       were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
       further information and  clarifications on  the agenda items before the meeting and for
       meaningful participation at the meeting. 

    5.All  the decisions in  the board meetings were carried  through  by  majority  while there
       were no dissenting member’s  views and hence  not captured  and  recorded  as part of
       the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period the company has Conducted following
businesses during the financial year under review: 

    1.The  Company   approved   the   increase  in   its   Authorised   Share   Capital   and  the
      consequential amendment to the Memorandum of Association. 

    2.The Company  increased its  Authorised Share Capital  through  an  Ordinary Resolution
       passed at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June 19, 2024.
 
    3.The approval  for issuance  of  Bonus Shares  by  way of  capitalisation  of reserves was
       accorded  by  the  Members  at  the Extra-Ordinary  General  Meeting  held  on June 19,
       2024.
 
    4.The Company  declared  and paid an  Interim  Dividend  of ₹0.50 per  equity share (i.e.,
       5%) on fully paid-up equity shares of ₹10/- each.  The record date for the said dividend
       was June 6, 2024. 

The opinion given by CS ASHISH VERMA Prop of M/s. Verma Ashish & Co., Company
Secretary in practice and examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

I further Report that, during the year, it was not mandatory on the part of the Company to
comply with the following Regulations / Guidelines as covered under MR-3: 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; 
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

Based on the aforesaid information and explanation provided by the Officers and
Employees of the Company and based on test checking made by us, we report that during
the financial year under review, the Company has substantially complied with the provisions
of the above-mentioned Act/s including the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules, Regulations, Standards etc. Save and except below we have not found
material observation / instances of material non-Compliance in respect of the same. 

FOR VERMA ASHISH & CO. 
Company Secretary 

CS ASHISH VERMA
Prop.

ACS: 59867
C.P.: 22530

PRC 2331/2022
UDIN: 059867F001169448

Place : Saharanpur 
Date : September 06 , 2025
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“ANNEXURE A” 
Date: 06/09/2025
Ref: SA/01/2024-25/CLARA 

To, 

The Members, 
Clara Industries Limited 
CIN: L25209UP2021PLC151537
127/1 Gram Simbhalka Junardar Paragna
Tehsil and District Saharanpur,
Saharanpur, Uttar Pradesh 247001 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

    1.Maintenance  of  secretarial  record  is  the  responsibility  of  the  management  of   the
      company. My responsibility  is to express  an opinion  on these secretarial records based
      on our audit. 

    2.I  have  followed  the  audit  practices  and  processes  as were  appropriate  to  obtain
      reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
      The  verification was done  on test basis  (by verifying  records made available to us)   to 
      ensure that  correct  facts  are  reflected  in  secretarial  records.  We  believe  that  the
      processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

    3.I have not verified the  correctness and appropriateness  of financial records and Books
      of Accounts of the company. 

    4.Wherever required,  I have obtained  Management representation external opinion from
       Independent  Professional  Company  Secretary  in  practice  about  the  compliance of
       laws, rules and regulations and occurrence of events. 

    5.The  compliance  of  the  provisions  of   Corporate  and  other   applicable  laws,  rules,
       regulations, standards  is responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to
       the verification of process followed by Company to ensure adequate Compliance. 

    6.The  Secretarial  Audit Report  is  neither an  assurance as  to  the future  viability of the
       company   nor  of   the  efficacy   or  effectiveness  with  which   the  management  has
       conducted the affairs of the company. 

FOR VERMA ASHISH & CO. 
Company Secretary 

CS ASHISH VERMA
Prop.

ACS: 59867
C.P.: 22530

PRC 2331/2022
UDIN: 059867F001169448

Place : Saharanpur 
Date : September 06 , 2025
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CFO CERTIFICATION
To,

The Board of Directors
Clara Industries Limited

I, Nikhil Kukreja, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company, do hereby certify to the
Board that:

    1.We have reviewed  the financial statements  and  the cash flow statement  for  the  year
      ending 31st March, 2025, and to the best of our knowledge and belief:
      (i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
          fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
      (ii)These statements together present a  true and fair view of the  Company’s affairs and
          are  in   compliance  with   existing  accounting  standards,   applicable  laws,      and
          regulations.

    2.There are,  to the best of our knowledge and belief,  no transactions entered into by the
       Company  during the year which are  fraudulent,  illegal,  or  violative of the Company’s
       Code of Conduct.

    3.We accept responsibility for  establishing and maintaining  internal controls for financial
       reporting  and  confirm  that  we have  evaluated the  effectiveness  of  the  Company’s
       internal  control  systems  pertaining  to  financial  reporting.  We  have disclosed to the
       auditors  and  the  Audit  Committee  deficiencies  in  the  design  or  operation of such
       internal  controls,  if  any,  of  which  we  are  aware,  and  the  steps  we  have taken or
       propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

    4.We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:
       (i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
       (ii)Significant  changes in accounting policies  during the year  and  that the same have
           been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and
      (iii)Instances  of significant fraud  of which we have become aware and the involvement
           therein, if any,  of the management  or  an  employee having a  significant role  in the
           Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For Clara Industries Limited

Sd/-
Nikhil Kukreja

Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 06649387

Place : Saharanpur 
Date : September 06 , 2025
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended]

1. Brief Outline on the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company reflects its commitment to
sustainable development by integrating economic, environmental, and social imperatives. It
recognizes the interests of all stakeholders while enhancing the goodwill and long-term
value of the Company.

In alignment with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules notified thereunder,
the CSR Policy of the Company outlines the following focus areas:

1.Education and Skill Development – Promoting education and enhancing vocational skills,
particularly among children, women, and differently-abled persons.

2.Health Care – Promoting healthcare initiatives, including preventive and rehabilitative
facilities.

3.Poverty and Malnutrition – Fighting against hunger, poverty, and malnutrition.
4.Rural Development – Facilitating rural development and supporting slum area upliftment.

The CSR Committee also has the authority to recommend and undertake any other CSR
activities permitted under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time
to time.

To ensure a structured and impactful approach, the Board of Directors has approved a CSR
Policy that provides a framework for effectively meeting the Company’s social responsibility
objectives and delivering optimum benefits to deserving sections of society.

2. Composition of CSR Committee

As on March 31, 2024, the composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of
the Company is as follows:

Members
Designation/ Nature of

Directorship/ Chairperson

Number of meetings of CSR
Committee

Held during the
year

Attended during
the year

Mr. Avdesh Kumar Kamboj Independent Director- Chairperson 3 3

Mr. Man Mohan Singh Independent Director- Member 3 3

Ms. Parry Kukreja Director- Member 3 3

3. Web-link(s) where the Composition of the CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR
Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

Composition of CSR Committee: Click Here
CSR Policy: Click Here
CSR Projects approved by the Board: Click Here

https://clara.co.in/pdf_doc/corporate_social_responsibility/CORPORATE_SOCIAL_RESPONSBILITY_COMMITTEE.pdf
https://clara.co.in/pdf_doc/corporate_social_responsibility/CSR%20Policy.pdf
https://clara.co.in/corporate-social-responsibility/
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4. Executive Summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects  
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable

5. Financial Details of CSR Obligation
 (a) Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135:
₹419.67 lakh
 (b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of
Section 135: ₹8,66,946.75
 (c) Surplus arising out of CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil
 (d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Nil
 (e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: ₹8,66,946.75

6. Details of CSR Spend for the Financial Year

 (a) Amount spent on CSR Project (both ongoing projects and other than ongoing
projects): ₹8,66,946.75
 (b) Amount spent on Administrative Overheads: Nil
 (c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
 (d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (6a+6b+6c): ₹8,66,946.75
 (e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

 (f)Excess amount for set-off, if any:

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
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8. Capital Assets Created/Acquired through CSR Spend
Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No
Details of such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable

9. Reason(s) for not spending two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-
section (5) of section 135: Not Applicable

For Clara Industries Limited

Sd/-
Parry Kukreja

Managing Director

Sd/-
Avdesh Kumar Kamboj

CSR Committee Chairperson

Place : Saharanpur 
Date : September 06 , 2025
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MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Clara Industries Limited has built its identity
as a reliable and forward-looking
organization in the packaging and allied
industries. Over the years, the Company
has steadily expanded its expertise across
multiple business verticals including
packaging films, flexible packaging, PP
mats, recycled granules, self-adhesive
tapes, horticulture bags, and food wraps.
This diversification is not just a measure of
scale, but of strength, allowing Clara
Industries to serve varied consumer and
industrial needs while maintaining its focus
on quality and innovation.

The Company’s journey has been defined
by resilience and adaptability. From modest
beginnings, Clara Industries has
consistently aligned itself with market shifts,
technological changes, and evolving
customer expectations. Its emphasis on
maintaining product integrity and
environmental responsibility has allowed it
to become a trusted partner for businesses
and households alike. Today, the Company
stands as a name synonymous with both
reliability and progressive thinking in the
packaging domain.

The legacy of Clara Industries is deeply
rooted in the values of commitment, quality,
and long-term vision. It has always believed
that growth is not merely reflected in
numbers but also in the ability to sustain
trust across generations of stakeholders.
This guiding principle has ensured that even
in years marked by challenges, Clara
Industries has remained steadfast in
delivering value. The Company’s reputation
is a result of years of consistent effort,
strong governance, and a belief in doing
business responsibly.

Looking ahead, Clara Industries continues
to build on this foundation, not by simply
adding to its scale but by strengthening its
contribution to the industries it serves and
the communities around it. The legacy it
carries is not just of past achievements, but
of a vision to create enduring value,
resilience, and responsible growth in the
years to come.

Clara Industries Limited operates through a
diverse portfolio of businesses that
together form the foundation of its growth
and resilience. Each segment complements
the others, enabling the Company to
remain balanced even in times of market
volatility. By catering to both industrial and
household needs, Clara Industries has built
an ecosystem that combines large-scale
manufacturing with consumer-centric
innovation.

The packaging films business has remained
at the heart of operations, serving as the
backbone for several industries that rely on
safe and efficient packaging solutions. With
continuous improvements in quality
standards and technology adoption, Clara
Industries has established itself as a
dependable supplier in this highly
competitive segment. The products
emerging from this vertical are not only
essential to the functioning of multiple
value chains but also act as a bridge that
connects manufacturers with consumers
across regions.

The flexible packaging business is another
important arm, designed to address the
rising demand for versatile and durable
packaging. In an environment where
product presentation, protection, and
sustainability matter equally, Clara
Industries has positioned its solutions as
reliable  and i nnovative.  This  business  has 
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given the Company the agility to respond
quickly to market requirements while also
ensuring that it contributes meaningfully to
the modern consumer experience.

The Company’s presence in PP mats
reflects its philosophy of addressing both
functional and lifestyle needs. What began
as a simple consumer good has grown into
a category with increasing relevance,
particularly in households and institutions.
Clara Industries has managed to transform
this everyday utility product into one that
carries the hallmark of quality and trust. The
strength of this segment lies in its ability to
reach diverse markets and maintain
relevance across a wide demographic.

In the recycled granules business, the
Company underscores its commitment to
sustainability and environmental
responsibility. By converting post-industrial
and post-consumer waste into high-quality
raw material, Clara Industries not only
reduces dependency on virgin plastics but
also contributes to a circular economy. This
segment represents the Company’s
proactive steps towards integrating
sustainability with profitability, and its
growing importance reflects how future-
ready Clara Industries has become.

The self-adhesive tapes division has been
built with a focus on performance and
convenience. These products have found
applications across industries, households,
and offices, making them an essential utility
with a wide reach. By ensuring consistency
and durability in this segment, the
Company has created a line of products
that have become indispensable in day-to-
day operations of both businesses and
consumers.

The horticulture bags segment, though
specialized, holds significant promise given
the increasing focus on agriculture and
green practices. Clara Industries has
positioned itself as a responsible
contributor to the agricultural economy by
providing solutions that enhance farming
efficiency and sustainability. This business
reflects  the  Company’s  vision  of  aligning 

growth with broader societal and
environmental goals.

The food wrap business represents one of
the Company’s strongest consumer-facing
endeavours. By offering safe, hygienic, and
innovative wrapping solutions, Clara
Industries has been able to connect directly
with households and food businesses. This
segment also highlights the Company’s
ability to combine functionality with health
and environmental considerations, creating
a product line that resonates with modern
lifestyles.

Together, these diverse business segments
demonstrate the breadth and depth of
Clara Industries Limited. Each vertical
brings its own strengths and opportunities,
while collectively they create a synergy that
underpins the Company’s stability and
progress. This diversity has been one of the
strongest reasons for Clara Industries’
resilience and growth, ensuring that the
Company is not defined by a single market
but by a portfolio of opportunities that
continue to evolve with time.

The strength of Clara Industries lies in its
robust manufacturing infrastructure, which
continues to evolve with the demands of
the market. Our facilities are equipped with
advanced machinery and technology,
enabling us to maintain consistent quality,
optimize efficiency, and scale production in
line with customer requirements. Over the
years, we have built a reputation for
precision and reliability in our operations,
ensuring that every product leaving our
plants reflects the highest standards of
craftsmanship and compliance.

A significant aspect of our manufacturing
philosophy is the emphasis on sustainability
and process optimization. By investing in
energy-efficient equipment, implementing
waste reduction practices, and promoting
recycling initiatives within our operations,
we aim to align our production processes
with global benchmarks of environmental
responsibility. Our in-house quality control
systems    are   designed   to  monitor  every 
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stage of production, from sourcing of raw
materials to the final product, ensuring
adherence to both domestic and
international quality norms.

The versatility of our manufacturing
capabilities allows us to serve a diverse
range of sectors, from packaging films and
flexible packaging to specialized segments
such as self-adhesive tapes, recycled
granules, horticulture bags, and food
wraps. This integrated approach not only
reduces dependency on external resources
but also provides us with greater flexibility
to innovate and customize solutions for our
clients.

Our ability to adapt capacity to market
dynamics has been an important driver of
growth. Even during periods of volatility in
raw material pricing and supply chain
disruptions, the resilience of our operations
has enabled us to sustain production and
deliver on commitments. The expansion of
our production lines over the years has
enhanced our efficiency and improved
turnaround times, allowing us to meet
increasing volumes without compromising
on quality.

At Clara Industries, we view our
manufacturing capabilities not just as a
means of production, but as a core
strength that defines our competitiveness.
The continuous pursuit of technological
advancement, combined with an
unwavering focus on quality and
sustainability, positions us to serve evolving
customer needs and drive long-term
growth.

At Clara Industries, research and innovation
remain at the heart of our growth journey.
The company has always recognized that
long-term success is determined not only by
operational efficiency but also by the
ability to anticipate market shifts and
create solutions that address emerging
needs. Guided by this philosophy, our
approach to research and product
development is built on continuous
improvement, customer-centricity, and
sustainability.

The packaging and allied industries are
undergoing rapid transformation, driven by
changing consumer lifestyles, rising
awareness of environmental concerns, and
evolving regulatory frameworks. In
response, we have aligned our research
priorities with the twin objectives of
functionality and responsibility. Our teams
focus on developing products that are
lighter, stronger, and more versatile while
simultaneously reducing environmental
impact through the use of recyclable and
eco-friendly materials. By doing so, we
create offerings that not only meet
customer requirements but also contribute
positively to the larger ecosystem.

A key area of innovation has been the
enhancement of material performance to
ensure durability, safety, and cost
efficiency. Through rigorous testing,
process optimization, and investment in
advanced technologies, we continue to
improve the barrier properties, flexibility,
and shelf-life characteristics of our
products. This commitment enables our
solutions to find application across diverse
sectors ranging from food and consumer
goods to agriculture and industrial uses.

Equally important is the role of product
development in maintaining our
competitive edge. Our teams work closely
with customers to understand their unique
requirements and co-create solutions that
provide measurable value. This
collaborative approach has enabled us to
build long-standing partnerships and gain
recognition as a trusted solutions provider.
Innovation, therefore, is not viewed as an
isolated function but as a collaborative
process where customer feedback, market
insights, and technical expertise converge.
In recent years, our research has also
placed significant emphasis on process
efficiency and sustainability. We continue
to explore alternatives that minimize waste,
reduce energy consumption, and support
the transition to a circular economy. The
development of products from recycled
granules and our investments in eco-
conscious   packaging   solutions  stand   as
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testaments to this focus.

Clara Industries envisions innovation as a
continuous journey rather than a
destination. By nurturing a culture of
curiosity and encouraging our teams to
push boundaries, we aim to deliver
products that not only address today’s
needs but also anticipate tomorrow’s
possibilities. Our investment in research
and product development is therefore both
a business strategy and a responsibility—
ensuring that we remain relevant,
competitive, and aligned with global
sustainability imperatives.

Clara Industries has consistently
demonstrated resilience and adaptability in
its growth journey. Since inception, the
Company has advanced steadily by
combining entrepreneurial vision with
disciplined execution. Each phase of
growth has been marked by investments in
capabilities, diversification of business
verticals, and a commitment to value
creation for all stakeholders. Over the
years, we have expanded from being a
focused packaging player into a diversified
enterprise with a presence across
packaging films, flexible packaging,
recycled granules, self-adhesive tapes,
horticulture bags, PP mats, and food wraps.
This transition has been achieved through a
measured approach that balances
opportunity with responsibility.

The year 2024–25 reflects the continuity of
this journey. While the broader business
environment has remained challenging,
Clara Industries has maintained its focus on
strengthening core operations and
deepening market penetration. Instead of
pursuing aggressive expansions, the
emphasis has been on consolidating
existing capacities, streamlining
efficiencies, and enhancing product
quality. This approach ensures sustainable
growth by building a solid foundation
before the next phase of scale-up.

Our expansion strategy continues to be
guided by three priorities—diversification,
innovation, and sustainability. 

Diversification across businesses provides
us with resilience against market volatility
and helps tap opportunities across
industries. Innovation enables us to remain
ahead of evolving consumer preferences,
while sustainability ensures that our growth
is aligned with global environmental and
social imperatives. Together, these
priorities define a growth model that is
balanced and future-ready.

Geographically, the Company is steadily
working to expand its footprint within India
and across selected international markets.
By leveraging our strong manufacturing
base and customer relationships, we aim to
increase our share in both domestic and
export segments. At the same time, we
continue to explore strategic collaborations
and partnerships that can accelerate
growth without diluting focus.

Looking ahead, Clara Industries envisions
growth not as an end in itself but as a
means to create long-term value. The
Company intends to pursue expansion
opportunities that complement its existing
strengths, deepen customer engagement,
and contribute positively to the broader
ecosystem. By focusing on measured
expansion, operational excellence, and
customer-centric innovation, Clara
Industries is preparing itself for the next
phase of growth—one that is sustainable,
scalable, and strategically aligned with the
evolving needs of markets and society.

At Clara Industries, our philosophy is
anchored in the belief that business growth
and societal progress must go hand in
hand. We view our role not merely as a
manufacturer or supplier, but as a partner
in shaping sustainable solutions for the
future. Every decision, from product
development to customer engagement, is
guided by the principle of creating long-
term value while upholding responsibility
toward people, communities, and the
environment. This philosophy has enabled
us to build enduring trust and credibility
among stakeholders and has shaped the
way we conduct our business over the
years.
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The Company’s core values provide the
foundation for this philosophy and serve as
guiding principles in our journey. Integrity
forms the heart of our operations, ensuring
transparency, fairness, and accountability
in every relationship. Excellence drives us to
continuously push boundaries, improve
processes, and set benchmarks in quality
and service. Innovation inspires us to seek
out new ideas and adopt forward-looking
approaches that anticipate evolving market
needs. Sustainability underscores our
commitment to minimizing environmental
impact and maximizing resource efficiency.
Collaboration reminds us that our success is
rooted in partnerships—within teams, with
customers, suppliers, and the larger
community.

Together, these values form more than just
a set of ideals; they define our culture and
identity as an organization. They influence
the way we innovate, the way we serve our
customers, and the way we contribute to
the world around us. At Clara Industries, we
see our philosophy and values not as
aspirations to be achieved someday, but as
everyday practices that guide our growth,
inspire our people, and shape our future.

GLOBAL ECONOMY
The global economy in 2025 stands at a
critical juncture, balancing between
structural challenges and emerging signs of
stability. According to the International
Monetary Fund (IMF), global GDP growth is
projected at around 2.8% in 2025,
reflecting a moderation from pre-pandemic
averages but still indicative of resilience in
key markets. While advanced economies
face headwinds from tightening financial
conditions, geopolitical uncertainties, and
subdued trade flows, emerging markets
continue to provide momentum with
stronger consumption and investment
patterns. Softening inflation and gradually
easing supply chain disruptions are
expected to support a more balanced
global growth trajectory in the medium
term.

GROWTH MOMENTUM
The world economy is anticipated to
expand modestly in 2025, with the IMF
projecting global GDP growth at 2.8% .
While advanced economies seem likely to
deliver around 1.5% growth, emerging
economies are expected to outperform,
thanks to resilient domestic consumption
and public infrastructure spending — many
poised to grow at over 4%. India stands out
among major economies, with its GDP
growth projected at 6.5–6.7% for FY 2024–
25. This sustained momentum is being
driven by strong private consumption,
robust public investments, and a strategic
focus on manufacturing, infrastructure, and
renewable energy. Such a favourable
macroeconomic climate creates a solid
backdrop for industries like packaging,
which directly benefit from rising demand
across consumer and commercial sectors.

GLOBAL TRADE TENSIONS
In early April 2025, the United States
implemented a sweeping shift in trade
policy, imposing a universal 10% minimum
tariff on all imports under the declaration
of a ‘national emergency’ to counter
perceived unfair trade practices. This move
significantly disrupted global trade flows,
with China facing the sharpest impact as
tariffs on Chinese goods surged to 145%. In
retaliation, China levied steep reciprocal
tariffs on U.S. exports, further escalating
trade tensions.

The policy shift has heightened cost
pressures across industries, disrupted
global supply chains, and contributed to
financial market volatility. While the U.S.
suspended additional tariff hikes for 59
trading partners—including the EU,
Canada, Mexico, South Korea, and Vietnam
—China remained excluded, intensifying the
geopolitical divide.

This realignment underscores a sharp pivot
toward protectionism, undermining
decades of free-trade agreements and
injecting  considerable  uncertainty into the 
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global economy, even as it aims to address
long-standing trade imbalances.

REGIONAL GROWTH TRENDS
UNITED STATES
The U.S. economy is projected to grow at
1.8% in 2025, a slowdown driven by
restrictive monetary policy and escalating
trade disruptions. Inflation is expected at
around 3%, with tariffs adding nearly one
percentage point. Domestic consumption is
weakening, while manufacturing faces
rising input costs, intensifying growth
headwinds.

CHINA
China’s growth forecast has been revised
down to 4% in 2025 amid softening
external demand, internal deleveraging,
and a transition toward consumption-driven
growth. Inflation remains subdued, with
risks of deflation and renewed credit stress
in the property sector, which continues to
weigh on overall stability.

EURO AREA
Eurozone GDP growth is expected at just
0.8% in 2025, constrained by weak
consumption, soft external demand, and
ongoing political and energy-related
uncertainties. Investor sentiment remains
fragile, particularly in Germany and France,
dampening prospects for a robust recovery.

EMERGING MARKETS & DEVELOPING
ECONOMIES (EMDES)
Growth in EMDEs is moderating, with
notable slowdowns in Mexico, South Africa,
and Argentina. High debt burdens, currency
depreciation, and tighter financing
conditions are straining policy flexibility,
while reduced investor interest amplifies
economic vulnerabilities across these
markets.

GLOBAL INFLATION OUTLOOK
According to the IMF’s April 2025 World
Economic Outlook, global inflation is
projected to ease from 6.8% in 2023 to
5.9% in  2024 and  further to 4.5% in 2025. 

The decline is supported by easing supply
chain pressures, softer food and energy
prices, and tighter monetary policy in
advanced economies. While advanced
economies are expected to reach their
inflation targets sooner, Emerging Markets
and Developing Economies (EMDEs) will
continue to face higher price pressures for
longer. Core inflation is projected to
decline more gradually, reflecting
persistent wage and service costs.
However, tariff hikes and policy uncertainty
pose risks, as higher import costs could
slow disinflation and delay price stability.

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OUTLOOK
The global economy is undergoing
profound structural shifts, shaped by rapid
technological advancements and
automation. These changes have enhanced
productivity but also contributed to job
displacement, wage stagnation, and
widening inequality, especially in advanced
economies.

While near-term challenges are dominated
by geopolitical tensions and rising
protectionism, deeper concerns stem from
vulnerabilities in interconnected global
supply chains. Disruptions caused by tariffs,
trade disputes, and other shocks continue
to create ripple effects across industries
and markets.

Uncertainty around investment, heightened
by policy ambiguity and trade frictions, is
leading to delayed capital flows, tighter
financial conditions, and subdued
economic momentum. At the same time,
market volatility is intensifying, exposing
potential risks to the global financial system
as confidence weakens.

Addressing these challenges will require
nuanced and coordinated policy responses
aimed at strengthening resilience,
supporting inclusive growth, and moving
beyond binary trade narratives of ‘winners
and losers’ toward broad-based global
prosperity.

(Source: IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2025)

https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2025/04/22/world-economic-outlook-april-2025
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INDIAN ECONOMY
India’s economy grew at 6.5% in FY 2024–
25, as per the National Statistics Office’s
second advance estimates (February 28,
2025), maintaining its momentum despite a
challenging global environment. This
performance underscores the resilience of
India’s domestic economic structure and
the effectiveness of calibrated policy
measures in mitigating external risks such
as persistent trade tensions and tariff-
related disruptions.

Growth continues to be anchored by strong
domestic consumption, with rural demand
acting as a crucial buffer against global
uncertainties. Robust agricultural output
and supportive government initiatives have
sustained rural spending. However,
sustaining long-term momentum will require
revival in both rural and urban demand,
particularly amid labor market constraints
and inflationary pressures.

Structural reforms, rapid digital adoption,
and continued infrastructure investments
are strengthening India’s macroeconomic
fundamentals. Yet, additional reforms are
essential to further boost investment flows
and enhance manufacturing
competitiveness. While easing global oil
prices provide some relief, inflation remains
a key concern guiding the Reserve Bank of
India’s monetary policy.

INDIA’S GROWTH PROJECTIONS
According to the International Monetary
Fund (IMF), India’s real GDP growth is
projected at 6.4% for both FY 2024–25
and 2025–26, revised upward from earlier
estimates of 6.2% and 6.3%, respectively.
This upgrade reflects a more benign
external environment and reinforces India’s
status as the fastest-growing major
economy.

Supporting this optimism, a United Nations
report also projects India’s growth to
moderate slightly to 6.3% in 2025, while
still  recognizing the  country  as a standout 

performer among its peers. 

This robust growth trajectory underscores
India’s strong fundamentals—anchored by
resilient domestic consumption, ongoing
policy reforms, and targeted investment—
which continue to position the nation as a
key driver of global economic momentum.

BUDGET 2025-26:
The Union Budget 2025-26 highlights nine
priority areas aimed at fostering inclusive
and sustainable growth—agriculture,
manufacturing, urban development, energy
security, green growth, youth
empowerment, financial sector
development, infrastructure & investment,
and last-mile delivery. Together, these
reflect a forward-looking roadmap for a
resilient and future-ready economy.

Continuing its infrastructure-led growth
strategy, the government has allocated a
capital outlay of ₹11.21 lakh crore for FY
2025-26, marking a modest increase from
the previous year. This sustained focus on
infrastructure underscores the role of public
investment as a critical driver of long-term
growth.

AGRICULTURE REBOUNDS
India’s growth vision is closely tied to the
agriculture sector, which is expected to
rebound with a 3.8% growth rate in FY
2024-25, up from 1.4% in FY 2023-24. This
recovery is driven by a favorable monsoon,
sustained rural consumption, and policy
interventions such as the Kisan Credit Card
scheme and the e-National Agriculture
Market (eNAM).

The Union Budget 2025-26 allocated Rs.
1.52 trillion to agriculture, focusing on
enhancing credit access, developing digital
marketplaces, and promoting sustainable
practices. These measures are aimed at
boosting productivity, supporting farmer
welfare, and strengthening allied sectors
such as horticulture and livestock.
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Agriculture continues to serve as a
cornerstone of economic stability, acting as
a buffer against global uncertainties while
fuelling rural demand. Targeted
investments in agri-infrastructure, storage,
and value-added services like food
processing are expected to generate
employment opportunities and broaden the
sector’s impact on the overall economy.
While the growth reflects steady progress, it
also marks a crucial phase of stabilisation
for long-term sustainability.

INDUSTRY PERFORMANCE
India’s manufacturing sector continues to
play a pivotal role in driving economic
expansion, supported by policy reforms,
supply chain diversification, and rising
domestic demand. In FY 2024-25, the
sector is projected to grow at 7.4%,
compared to 5.9% in FY 2023-24,
reflecting an improvement in capacity
utilisation and investment inflows.

Government initiatives such as the
Production-Linked Incentive (PLI) schemes,
focus on “Make in India,” and measures to
promote MSMEs are accelerating industrial
competitiveness. Increased capital
expenditure on infrastructure and logistics
is further strengthening the sector’s
ecosystem, improving both domestic and
export prospects.

However, challenges remain in the form of
high input costs, global trade uncertainties,
and technology adoption gaps. Addressing
these through skill development, innovation,
and greater private investment will be
crucial for sustaining momentum in the
manufacturing sector.

TRENDS IN INFLATION
Inflation remains a critical factor
influencing India’s macroeconomic stability.
In FY 2024-25, headline inflation averaged
around 4.6%, broadly within the Reserve
Bank of India’s target range of 2–6%. Food
price volatility, driven by supply-side shocks
such    as    erratic     rainfall    and    global 

The Union Budget 2025-26 emphasizes
measures to contain inflation through
enhanced food supply management,
investments in warehousing and cold
storage, and support for agricultural
productivity. Additionally, energy price
stability and calibrated monetary policy by
the RBI are expected to keep inflation in
check.

While inflationary risks persist from global
oil price fluctuations and climate-related
uncertainties, India’s strong domestic
demand, improved supply chains, and fiscal
prudence are expected to maintain price
stability going forward.

RURAL ECONOMY TRENDS
India’s rural economy continues to be a
vital engine for national consumption
dynamics. In FY 2024–25, inflation-
adjusted consumer spending grew by 7.1%,
surpassing overall GDP growth of 6.5%—a
testament to strengthening rural demand
even amid macroeconomic uncertainty.This
resurgence has been bolstered by
favorable monsoon conditions, healthier
farm incomes, and easing inflationary
pressures.

FMCG data for Q1 2025 indicates that
consumption growth in rural areas
outpaced urban demand by fourfold, with
traditional trade volumes rising to 6.2%
compared to 5.0% in the previous year. This
trend continued into Q2, where village
markets delivered double the consumption
growth seen in cities, propelled by staples
and personal care categories.

Furthermore, over three-quarters (76.6%) of
rural households reported higher
consumption levels, and nearly 40% noted
increased income—supported by low rural
inflation, which dropped to just 1.72% in
June 2025. Such strong rural momentum
offers a significant buffer for domestic
demand and underpins more stable growth
in the packaging, FMCG, and allied
sectors.
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EXPORT TRENDS
In FY 2024–25, India achieved a historic
high in total exports, amounting to US
$824.9 billion, marking a 6% year-on-year
increase. Services exports continued to
lead the momentum, recording US $387.5
billion, a robust 13.6% uplift over the
previous year. On the merchandise side,
non-petroleum exports expanded to US
$374.1 billion, growing by 6%.

Export diversification emerged as a
defining theme—high-tech and value-
added goods such as engineering,
electronics, pharmaceuticals, and
agricultural produce accounted for over
50% of merchandise exports. Electronics
exports surged impressively (+33–47%),
machinery and pharma maintained strong
traction, while agricultural products like
meat and dairy also showed double-digit
growth in Q2 FY25.  

The resilience of India’s export engine was
evident despite global headwinds. While
traditional sectors such as gems, jewellery,
and petroleum faced slowdowns or flat
performance,  the services sector helped
cushion the impact, contributing
significantly to foreign exchange inflows.
With trade deficit narrowing and balance
of payments stabilized, exports played a
critical stabilizing role amid lingering
geopolitical uncertainty.

FOREX & RUPEE STABILITY
India’s external sector gained further
strength on the foreign exchange front,
with reserves rising to USD 676.3 billion as
of March 31, 2025, up from USD 648.6
billion a year earlier. This increase reflects
proactive interventions by the RBI along
with favorable valuation gains on foreign
assets. The sustained build-up in reserves
provides a strong cushion against external
shocks and ensures ample import cover, a
critical safeguard in the face of ongoing
global uncertainties.

Despite navigating a turbulent global
environment,   the  Indian  Rupee  exhibited 

exhibited relative stability throughout FY
2024–25. While there were intermittent
phases of depreciation, the currency
rebounded sharply in early 2025, recording
its strongest monthly appreciation in over
six years in March. This recovery was driven
by strong foreign portfolio inflows and a
weakening US dollar.

For the full fiscal year, the rupee registered
only a modest depreciation of around 2.4%
against the US dollar—significantly better
than many other emerging market
currencies. The RBI’s timely interventions,
coupled with the comfort of robust forex
reserves, played a decisive role in
mitigating external shocks and sustaining
investor confidence.

FUTURE GROWTH PROSPECTS
India is projected to sustain a real GDP
growth rate of 6.5% between FY 2025-26
and FY 2027-28, supported by strong
fundamentals in manufacturing, exports,
and digital transformation. Enhanced
competitiveness in these areas, coupled
with a notable rise in services exports, is
expected to strengthen productivity and
efficiency, reinforcing India’s long-term
growth trajectory.

That said, certain headwinds persist. A
potential global slowdown—particularly in
the U.S. and China—could dampen external
demand. On the domestic front, delays in
private corporate capital expenditure,
compounded by concerns over China’s
excess manufacturing capacity, may weigh
on investment. Further, a possible
depreciation of the Chinese Renminbi
could exert pressure on India’s trade
balance.

Nevertheless, India remains well positioned
to capitalize on the growing adoption of
the ‘China + 1’ strategy by multinational
corporations. This shift is likely to boost
India’s role in global manufacturing and
supply chains, creating fresh opportunities
for investment, exports, and job creation.
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GLOBAL FLEXIBLE PACKAGING
MARKET
The global flexible packaging market was
valued at USD 210.62 billion in 2023 and is
projected to reach USD 238.91 billion by
2029, registering a steady CAGR of 2.12%.
This growth is underpinned by rising
demand across food and beverages,
pharmaceuticals, personal care, and
household products, where packaging is
increasingly recognized as a value-adding
extension of the product itself.

Innovation is driving the transition toward
smaller, convenient formats such as
sachets, pillow packs, and mini pouches,
which cater to evolving consumer
preferences for portability and
affordability. At the same time,
sustainability imperatives are reshaping the
industry, encouraging the development of
eco-friendly, recyclable, and lightweight
solutions, particularly in the case of multi-
layer plastic materials that are traditionally
harder to recycle.

Within the Asia-Pacific region, China stands
out as the largest contributor, benefitting
from its low-cost manufacturing base, rapid 

urbanization, and rising consumer demand
for modern packaging formats. Global
brands and retailers also favor flexible
packaging for its cost efficiency, logistical
advantages, and strong performance in
single-serve and small-format applications,
making it a preferred choice across both
emerging and developed markets.

Overall, flexible packaging continues to
expand its role as not just a protective
medium but also a strategic tool for brand
differentiation, consumer convenience, and
sustainability compliance, positioning it as
a central pillar of the global packaging
industry’s future.

GLOBAL FLEXIBLE PACKAGING
MARKET – SIZE & TRAJECTORY
The global flexible packaging market has
displayed robust growth in recent years and
is projected to continue its upward trend. In
2023, the market was estimated at USD
270.96 billion, and expectations are that it
will grow to USD 373.34 billion by 2030,
translating into a strong CAGR of
approximately 4.8%. Earlier estimates
suggested a base of USD 210.62 billion in
2023, with projections rising to  USD 238.91 
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billion by 2029, reflecting a more
conservative CAGR of 2.12%.

This growth is being driven by increasing
demand across key industries such as food
& beverage, pharmaceuticals, personal
care, and e-commerce packaging. Flexible
packaging offers multiple advantages—
space efficiency, reduced material usage,
better product protection, and
sustainability—which continue to attract
manufacturers and global brands alike.
Notably, the Asia-Pacific region remains
the largest and fastest-growing market,
driven by rising disposable incomes,
urbanisation, and robust retail expansion.

FLEXIBLE PACKAGING IN APAC
The Asia-Pacific (APAC) flexible packaging
market was valued at USD 80.74 billion in
2023 and is projected to reach USD 94.67
billion by 2029, registering a steady CAGR
of 2.69% during the forecast period. APAC
is set to remain the dominant force in the
global flexible packaging landscape, driven
by strong domestic demand, competitive
labour costs, and expanding manufacturing
infrastructure. These factors continue to
attract global players who are increasing
investments, forming strategic partnerships,
and introducing innovative product
solutions to strengthen their market
presence.

The region’s growth trajectory is supported
by rapid economic development, a rising
workforce, and surging demand from food,
beverage, and pharmaceutical sectors. In
particular, food packaging innovation and
healthcare-related needs are shaping
consumer expectations for greater safety,
convenience, and sustainability.

That said, APAC also presents challenges
due to its fragmented market structure and
vast geographic scale, particularly in large
economies like China and India, which can
complicate supply chain efficiency.
Companies that successfully diversify
sourcing networks, enhance procurement
systems,  and  adapt  packaging formats to 

local preferences will gain a competitive
edge.

The APAC market encompasses a wide
spectrum—from low-cost sachets catering
to mass consumption to premium protective
packaging for industrial and healthcare
applications. Looking ahead, significant
growth is expected in convenience-driven
and sustainable packaging formats,
underscoring APAC’s role as the most
influential hub for flexible packaging
globally.

EUROPE FLEXIBLE PACKAGING
MARKET
The European flexible packaging market
was valued at USD 58.66 billion in 2023
and is forecast to reach USD 65.58 billion
by 2029, registering a CAGR of 1.88%.
Growth in the region is underpinned by
economic stability, rising disposable
incomes, and strong demand for innovative
packaging technologies, including aseptic,
retort, anti-counterfeit, and child-resistant
formats. These solutions provide vendors
with a competitive edge while ensuring
compliance with stringent European
regulations on food safety and
sustainability.

The market is being reshaped by a
structural shift from rigid to flexible
packaging, as smaller households and
urban consumers increasingly favour single-
serve, lightweight, and portable packaging.
Demand from coffee, pet food, fresh
produce, and dairy sectors continues to
drive innovation, with recyclability and eco-
friendly materials becoming central to
product development.

Western Europe dominates the market,
supported by mature consumption patterns
and advanced retail infrastructure in
countries such as Germany, France,
Belgium, and the Netherlands. Meanwhile,
Eastern Europe is emerging as a high-
growth region, benefitting from rising
incomes and evolving consumer
preferences.
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However, the market faces challenges from
Brexit-related trade complexities, which
have disrupted cross-border supply chains
and increased compliance costs for
exporters. Despite these hurdles, Europe’s
emphasis on sustainable innovation and
premium packaging solutions positions it as
a leading player in shaping the future of
the global flexible packaging industry.

FLEXIBLE PACKAGING IN NORTH
AMERICA
The North America flexible packaging
market was valued at USD 48.66 billion in
2023 and is projected to reach USD 52.62
billion by 2029, at a CAGR of 1.31% over
the forecast period. Growth in the region is
being largely driven by the rapid expansion
of e-commerce, particularly in high-volume
categories such as personal care products,
pharmaceuticals, and pet foods, which has
spurred demand for flexible sacks, pouches,
and FIBCs.

The region—led by the United States, the
largest revenue contributor—benefits from
a mature and resilient economy
characterized by increasing consumer
spending, dining-out frequency, and strong
retail activity, all of which continue to
favour packaging demand. Flexible plastic
films and resins remain dominant due to
their cost-efficiency, durability, and
versatility, especially in the food and
beverage sector, where extended shelf life
and product protection are essential.

A major trend shaping the market is the
adoption of smart packaging technologies
such as RFID tags and QR codes, which
enhance supply chain visibility, product
authentication, and consumer engagement,
particularly in sensitive categories like food
and pharmaceuticals. Moreover, the
growing popularity of portable and
convenient pouch formats for ready-to-eat
foods, beverages, and personal care
products further supports market
expansion.

While the region’s market is relatively
mature compared to APAC and Europe,
continuous innovation in sustainable
packaging solutions, recycling
technologies, and digitalized packaging
formats is expected to create new
opportunities and strengthen North
America’s role in the global flexible
packaging industry.

LATIN AMERICA PACKAGING
TRENDS
The Latin America flexible packaging
market was valued at USD 14.83 billion in
2023 and is projected to reach USD 17.25
billion by 2029, growing at a CAGR of
2.55% during the forecast period. Growth
in the region is being fuelled by a rapidly
expanding middle class and rising
disposable incomes, which are driving
higher consumption levels and packaging
demand, outpacing the more mature
markets of North America and Europe.

Brazil and Mexico are the key growth
engines in the region’s flexible packaging
industry. Brazil, ranked as the second-
largest pet food market globally, has seen
significant demand for flexible packaging
in this category, supported by the country’s
strong grain production base. In addition,
Latin America is a major exporter of meat,
poultry, and seafood, creating sustained
demand for durable and efficient
packaging solutions for international
shipping.

The retail ecosystem in Brazil further
underlines this trend, with over 90,000 retail
outlets spanning healthcare, food,
electronics, and pet care categories. The
ongoing recovery of Brazil’s economy,
coupled with rising investment in organized
retail, is expected to provide strong
momentum for the market.

Overall, the region presents a promising
outlook for flexible packaging, supported
by     growing     consumption,     expanding 
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agriculture and services sectors, and rising
exports, with Brazil continuing to play a
pivotal role in shaping the Latin American
market landscape.

MIDDLE EAST & AFRICA FLEXIBLE
PACKAGING MARKET
The Middle East & Africa flexible
packaging market was valued at USD 7.72
billion in 2023 and is projected to reach
USD 8.79 billion by 2029, expanding at a
CAGR of 2.19% over the forecast period.
Although per capita consumption remains
relatively low compared to mature regions
like Europe and North America, the market
presents substantial untapped potential.

Economic growth in Turkey, the UAE, and
Saudi Arabia is accelerating demand for
flexible packaging, particularly across the
food, pharmaceutical, and consumer goods
sectors. At the same time, regional
challenges—including economic volatility in
certain African economies, underdeveloped
logistics infrastructure, and lingering
recessionary impacts—pose constraints to
faster adoption.

Despite these hurdles, key urban centers
such as Dubai, Abu Dhabi, Riyadh, and
Doha are experiencing robust growth in
packaging demand. As economies stabilize
following pandemic-related and
geopolitical disruptions, countries like Saudi
Arabia, Kuwait, and Qatar are positioned to
sustain long-term demand for packaging
solutions.

The region’s large base of small and
medium enterprises (SMEs) also opens
opportunities for global players to expand.
Industry leaders such as Amcor, Constantia
Flexibles, and Huhtamaki Group, currently
anchored in South Africa and the UAE, are
well placed to scale their presence and
capture growth across new markets.

GROWTH DRIVERS
Shifting Consumer Expectations and
Lifestyle Changes

Modern consumers are prioritizing
packaging that blends functionality,
sustainability, and convenience. There is a
notable move toward mono-material and
minimalistic packaging designs that
enhance usability while reducing
environmental impact. Particularly in the
food, beverage, personal care, and
healthcare industries, hygienic, attractive,
and eco-conscious packaging has become
essential in the post-pandemic era.
Growing urban populations and fast-paced
lifestyles are further amplifying the demand
for easy-to-use, resealable, and lightweight
packaging formats.

Surge in Online Food Delivery and E-
Commerce Packaging

The expansion of food delivery services,
quick commerce, and e-commerce
platforms has fueled demand for durable,
safe, and sustainable packaging. The rise
of dark kitchens and aggregator platforms
has led to soaring usage of disposable
trays, bowls, pouches, and containers.
Beyond food, the growth of online shopping
is also boosting flexible packaging needs
for electronics, apparel, and household
products, where tamper-proof, protective,
and branded packaging plays a pivotal
role.

Packaging as a Strategic Branding and
Marketing Tool

Packaging is no longer just about
protecting products—it has become a
powerful brand enabler and storytelling
medium. Companies are investing in limited
editions, creative structural designs,
personalized prints, and interactive
features such as QR codes and AR-based
experiences to engage customers. By
reinforcing brand identity and enhancing
shelf appeal, packaging helps companies
stand out in increasingly competitive retail
and e-commerce spaces.

Innovation in Formats, Materials, and
Design

There is rising demand for single-serve,
family  packs,  miniaturized, and multi-pack 
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formats that address evolving consumer
preferences like portion control, portability,
and affordability. Simultaneously,
sustainability pressures are pushing brands
toward eco-friendly, recyclable, and
compostable packaging made from plant
starch, biodegradable plastics, and
recycled paper. Innovative formats such as
stand-up pouches, zipper packs, and spout
pouches are gaining traction due to their
versatility and lower material usage.

Digital Transformation, Smart
Packaging, and Traceability

Advancements in digital technologies are
reshaping the packaging sector. Smart
packaging solutions, including RFID tags,
NFC-enabled labels, and QR codes, are
enabling real-time tracking, authentication,
and personalized consumer engagement.
Blockchain and AI are being leveraged to
improve supply chain transparency,
traceability, and sustainability
performance. These technologies not only
protect against counterfeiting but also
support circular economy goals by
improving end-of-life management and
reducing waste.

Regulatory Push and Sustainability
Mandates

Governments and regulatory bodies are
enforcing stricter norms around plastic
waste management, recyclability, and
extended producer responsibility (EPR). This
is compelling manufacturers to adopt
greener packaging alternatives, invest in
closed-loop recycling systems, and develop
materials that align with global
sustainability standards. Companies that
adapt early are expected to gain
competitive advantage as eco-compliance
becomes a consumer and regulatory
expectation.

Globalization of Supply Chains and
Market Expansion

As global trade and cross-border e-
commerce expand, the demand for flexible,
durable, and lightweight packaging is
growing.  Flexible packaging  helps  reduce 

logistics costs and carbon footprints
compared to rigid alternatives. Emerging
markets in Asia, Africa, and Latin America
are offering substantial opportunities due
to rising disposable incomes, changing
consumption patterns, and an expanding
middle-class population.

MARKET OPPORTUNITIES
Vendor-Led Product Innovation

Global packaging vendors are actively
investing in advanced product platforms to
address evolving regulatory standards and
consumer expectations. By expanding their
product portfolios with sustainable,
lightweight, and performance-driven
solutions, vendors are securing stronger
market positions. Strategic investments in
R&D are also enabling companies to
diversify their geographic reach and create
long-term competitive advantages.

Rising Demand for Tamper-Proof
Packaging

Heightened regulatory oversight and
growing consumer concern over product
safety are accelerating the demand for
tamper-proof packaging. This trend is
especially pronounced in the food,
beverage, and pharmaceutical sectors,
where visible evidence of tampering not
only safeguards product integrity but also
builds consumer trust. For high-value goods
and sensitive categories such as baby food
or healthcare items, tamper-evident
solutions are becoming a market standard.

Emergence of Reusable and Refillable
Packaging Models

Sustainability is pushing businesses toward
reusable packaging systems that align with
circular economy principles. Durable
formats using stainless steel, aluminium, or
reinforced polymers are replacing single-
use plastics in areas like beverages,
personal care, and grocery deliveries.
These models not only reduce waste but
also create recurring consumer
engagement through refill and return
systems.
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Growing Role of Smart and Connected
Packaging

Technological innovation is opening
opportunities for smart packaging solutions.
Features such as QR codes, RFID tags, and
NFC chips provide transparency,
traceability, and consumer interactivity.
These solutions enhance safety by
validating authenticity, while also enabling
personalized marketing and customer
engagement. With the growth of e-
commerce and direct-to-consumer models,
connected packaging is becoming a vital
touchpoint.

Expansion of Sustainable Material
Alternatives

The global shift towards eco-friendly
packaging materials presents opportunities
for innovation in biodegradable plastics,
compostable films, and plant-based
materials. Vendors who can scale
production of cost-efficient and
sustainable alternatives are well-positioned
to capture both regulatory-driven and
consumer-driven demand, especially in
regions with stricter plastic bans.

Growth in Single-Serve and On-the-Go
Packaging

The rise of urban lifestyles, smaller
households, and health-conscious
consumers is driving demand for single-
serve and portion-controlled packaging.
This trend is particularly strong in snacks,
ready-to-drink beverages, and meal kits.
Brands that innovate in convenient,
portable, and eco-friendly formats stand to
benefit significantly.

KEY BARRIERS TO MARKET
GROWTH
Rising Costs of Recycling Infrastructure

The recycling of rigid and flexible plastic
packaging remains highly capital- and
resource-intensive. Significant amounts of
energy, water, and labour are required for
cleaning, segregating, and reprocessing
post-consumer plastics. For many small and 

medium enterprises (SMEs), it is often more
cost-effective to manufacture new plastic
packaging rather than invest in recycling.
Moreover, most packaging facilities across
emerging markets are designed to handle
virgin plastic materials, which makes
retrofitting them for recycled content both
costly and technically complex. This cost
burden continues to slow down large-scale
adoption of recycling initiatives.

Food Safety and Contamination Risks

One of the most pressing concerns in
packaging is the potential for harmful
substances to migrate from packaging
materials into consumables. Chemicals
such as PFAS, phthalates, and mineral oils—
commonly present in recycled or chemically
treated packaging—pose significant health
risks, especially when exposed to heat or
improper processing. Cross-contamination
during high-volume packaging operations
also jeopardizes food integrity, raising
safety concerns for manufacturers and
consumers alike. As regulatory agencies
tighten restrictions, packaging companies
are under increasing pressure to ensure
compliance and transparency across their
supply chains.

Environmental Burden of Plastic Waste

Plastic waste continues to dominate the
global sustainability debate, with single-use
and non-biodegradable polymers like
polystyrene being especially problematic.
These materials not only resist recycling but
also release carcinogenic by-products as
they degrade. Rising consumer awareness,
combined with stricter government policies,
is accelerating the push to eliminate single-
use plastics—placing both regulatory and
reputational pressure on packaging
companies.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
The global flexible packaging market is
projected to witness steady and broad-
based expansion over the next decade,
driven by its rising adoption across food,
healthcare,    personal   care,   and   digital 
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commerce sectors. Its unique combination
of cost-efficiency, adaptability, and
sustainability advantages firmly positions
flexible packaging as a cornerstone of the
industry’s ongoing transformation.

INDIAN FLEXIBLE PACKAGING
INDUSTRY
The Indian flexible packaging industry is
entering a phase of rapid expansion,
underpinned by strong macroeconomic
trends, evolving consumer behaviour, and
significant investments in manufacturing
capacity. With the market projected to
grow by nearly USD 17.5 billion between
2024 and 2029 at a CAGR of 12.7%, India
is expected to emerge as one of the
fastest-growing hubs for flexible packaging
globally. This acceleration is being driven
by rising demand for packaging solutions
that are lightweight, cost-effective,
durable, and sustainable.

Flexible packaging formats—including
pouches, bags, sachets, wraps, and
laminated films—are increasingly preferred
by both manufacturers and consumers due
to their ability to provide extended shelf
life, protection from contamination, and
convenient handling. The shift away from
rigid packaging formats such as glass and
tin towards flexible alternatives highlights
the industry’s transition to more resource-
efficient solutions. For businesses, the lower
transportation costs, reduced material
usage, and adaptability of flexible
packaging offer strong operational and
financial advantages.

A major demand driver is the food and
beverage sector, which accounts for the
largest share of consumption. With the
rapid rise of urbanisation, dual-income
households, and a growing culture of on-
the-go consumption, packaged foods,
snacks, dairy products, and beverages are
increasingly relying on flexible packaging to
deliver freshness and convenience. The
expansion of organised retail and e-
commerce platforms has further
accelerated   the    adoption    of    smaller, 

portable, and resealable packaging units.
In pharmaceuticals, flexible blister packs,
sachets, and pouches are gaining
popularity for their tamper resistance,
hygiene, and cost efficiency. Similarly, in
personal care and household goods,
flexible packaging is being leveraged to
support premiumisation while enabling
sustainable packaging practices.

Environmental concerns and regulatory
interventions are also reshaping the sector.
With increasing restrictions on single-use
plastics and rising public awareness of
plastic waste management, packaging
companies are shifting towards recyclable
and biodegradable film technologies.
Indian manufacturers are investing in
advanced multi-layered films, barrier
coatings, and mono-material laminates to
comply with sustainability mandates while
retaining performance and cost
competitiveness. Additionally, the
government’s focus on extended producer
responsibility (EPR) is compelling
companies to innovate and adopt closed-
loop recycling models.

The sector’s growth is also supported by
India’s competitive manufacturing
ecosystem. The availability of raw materials
such as polypropylene (PP) and
polyethylene (PE), combined with improving
infrastructure and favourable government
policies, is attracting both domestic and
global players to scale operations in India.
International companies view India as a
promising entry point into the broader Asia-
Pacific market, while local firms are
upgrading technology and expanding
capacity to cater to rising demand.

Going forward, the Indian flexible
packaging market is poised to evolve from
being volume-driven to innovation-led.
Developments in intelligent packaging—
such as QR-enabled packs, freshness
indicators, and smart labelling—are
expected to gain traction. At the same
time, digital printing and customised
packaging formats will cater to the
growing emphasis on personalisation and
brand    differentiation.    Companies    that 



successfully align their strategies with
sustainability, innovation, and affordability
will be best positioned to capture market
leadership in this high-growth industry.

Food and beverage packaging will
continue to dominate market share, but the
fastest growth is projected in
pharmaceuticals and personal care, driven
by increasing health awareness and
demand for premium products.
Furthermore, the rise of organized retail
and quick-commerce players like Blinkit,
Zepto, and Swiggy Instamart is set to
accelerate the adoption of flexible
pouches and sachets for efficient logistics
and consumer convenience.

Another important driver is the regulatory
environment. With India pledging to reduce
single-use plastics and encourage
recyclable or biodegradable alternatives,
flexible packaging companies are shifting
toward mono-material solutions,
compostable films, and recyclable
laminates.   These  eco-friendly  innovations 

are expected to gain substantial traction,
especially as consumer sentiment
increasingly favors sustainability.

From an investment perspective, the sector
offers attractive opportunities for both
domestic and foreign players. India’s
competitive manufacturing costs,
expanding infrastructure, and government
incentives under schemes like Make in India
and PLI (Production Linked Incentive) are
creating a favorable environment for
capacity expansion and technology
upgrades. Global leaders are eyeing joint
ventures, mergers, and acquisitions to
secure a foothold in this fast-growing
market.

In conclusion, the next five years will
witness a decisive shift toward sustainable,
intelligent, and digitalized packaging
ecosystems. Companies that invest early in
green materials, automation, and advanced
printing technologies will be well-
positioned to capture long-term value and
establish leadership in this evolving sector.
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EPR MANDATE 2025-26
The Government of India has introduced
the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR)
framework to accelerate sustainability in
packaging. Under this mandate, Producers,
Importers, and Brand Owners (PIBOs) are
legally obligated to manage the entire
lifecycle of their packaging—from design
and production to collection, recycling, and
final disposal. This initiative strengthens the
country’s commitment to a circular
economy, reduces environmental risks, and
promotes efficient resource utilization.

Key Features of the Mandate

Mandatory Registration: All PIBOs
must register with the Central Pollution
Control Board (CPCB) through a
centralized portal before undertaking
packaging operations.

Lifecycle Responsibility: Companies
are accountable for end-to-end
management of packaging waste
across materials like plastic, paper,
glass, and metal.

Recycled Content Targets: Effective
April 1, 2025, packaging must include
minimum recycled content and reuse
provisions.

Traceability & Labeling: From July 1,
2025, all plastic packaging must carry
QR codes, barcodes, or unique
identifiers for public traceability
through CPCB’s database.

Waste Collection Systems: PIBOs
must develop robust collection
mechanisms and partner with recyclers
to ensure responsible waste recovery.

Enforcement & Penalties: Non-
compliance will attract strict penalties
under the Environment (Protection) Act,
1986.

This landmark regulation represents a
paradigm shift in India’s packaging sector,
driving companies toward eco-friendly
innovation, enhanced accountability, and
sustainable growth practices.

COMMITMENT TO FOOD SAFETY
COMPLIANCE
The Food Safety and Standards (Packaging
and Labeling) Regulations, introduced in
2011, were designed to set comprehensive
requirements for how food products are
packed and labeled in India. Their primary
purpose is to safeguard consumers and
enhance product traceability, ensuring that
every packaged item reaching the market
adheres to strict quality and safety norms.

These regulations make it mandatory for
food labels to provide accurate and clear
details such as ingredients, nutritional
content, allergens, expiry dates, and
manufacturer information. Packaging
materials, too, are required to be food-
grade, safe, and non-toxic, protecting
products from contamination while
maintaining their freshness and quality. The
Food Safety and Standards Authority of
India (FSSAI) oversees the enforcement of
these rules, promoting transparency and
accountability across the food sector.

In January 2025, FSSAI further streamlined
compliance by announcing a uniform
enforcement timeline for amendments to
the Food Safety and Standards (Labeling
and Display) Regulations, 2020. Under this
system, all amendments will take effect
from July 1 each year, with a minimum
compliance window of 180 days from
notification. This approach not only
provides clarity and predictability for food
businesses but also ensures that consumers
continue to receive reliable and up-to-date
information on the products they purchase.

FSSAI’S PACKAGING UPDATE
On March 28, 2025, the Food Safety and
Standards Authority of India (FSSAI)
introduced a landmark amendment
permitting the use of select categories of
recycled plastics in food packaging. This
progressive step reflects India’s
commitment to sustainability while
maintaining  strict safeguards  around food 
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safety. Only those recycling technologies
that are formally evaluated and approved
by FSSAI will be permitted, ensuring that
the materials used pose no risk to consumer
health.

To reinforce transparency and
accountability, the amendment makes it
mandatory for all recycled plastic
packaging to carry clear traceability labels.
Additionally, food businesses using such
materials will undergo regular audits and
compliance checks, strengthening oversight
and minimizing the possibility of misuse. By
balancing innovation with responsibility, this
regulation paves the way for a more
circular economy in packaging, aligning
environmental goals with consumer trust.

STRENGTHENING PLASTIC WASTE
GOVERNANCE
The Plastic Waste Management (PWM)
Rules, 2016 were introduced to establish a
comprehensive framework for addressing
the growing challenges of plastic waste in
India, with particular emphasis on plastic
packaging. These rules focus on reducing
environmental pollution by encouraging
responsible production, collection,
segregation, recycling, and disposal of
plastic waste.

A key highlight of the PWM Rules is the
concept of Extended Producer
Responsibility (EPR), which places
accountability on producers, importers, and
brand owners to manage the lifecycle of
plastic products, including post-consumer
waste. By mandating that businesses set up
collection mechanisms and channel plastic
waste for recycling or safe disposal, the
rules aim to reduce the burden on
municipalities and improve waste
management efficiency.

Over time, the PWM framework has been
strengthened through amendments,
aligning with India’s sustainability goals and
global best practices. These efforts not only
mitigate plastic pollution but also create
opportunities  for innovation in  eco-friendly 

packaging and recycling technologies,
thereby promoting a circular economy.

PHASING OUT SINGLE-USE
PLASTICS
The nationwide ban on single-use plastics,
implemented in July 2022, represents a
landmark move in India’s battle against
plastic pollution. The regulation targeted 19
specific low-value, non-recyclable items—
including plastic straws, disposable cutlery,
and certain packaging materials—that were
major contributors to environmental
degradation.

This ban has not only curtailed the
production and use of such items but also
compelled packaging manufacturers and
brands to innovate and transition toward
sustainable alternatives. By promoting
biodegradable, compostable, and
recyclable packaging solutions, the policy
serves as a catalyst for long-term
environmental stewardship while pushing
industries to align with India’s broader
sustainability goals.

Additionally, the initiative has raised
consumer awareness about the
environmental consequences of single-use
plastics, encouraging responsible
consumption patterns and greater
acceptance of eco-friendly packaging in
daily life.
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INDIA’S PLASTIC TRANSITION
Launched in September 2021 by the
Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) and
WWF India, with support from WRAP, the
India Plastics Pact represents a bold step
toward building a circular economy for
plastic packaging. Its roadmap for
implementation, unveiled in August 2022,
outlines a strategic framework that brings
together businesses, policymakers, and
stakeholders to transform the way plastics
are produced, used, and recycled in India.

The Pact sets ambitious 2030 targets,
including ensuring that 100% of plastic
packaging is reusable, recyclable, or
compostable. It also aims to achieve a 50%
recycling rate for plastic packaging while
mandating that all packaging incorporates
an average of 25% recycled content. These
commitments are designed to close the
loop on plastic use, reduce waste leakage
into the environment, and maximize
resource efficiency.

Beyond recycling targets, the Pact
emphasizes the elimination of unnecessary
or problematic plastic packaging through
design innovation and systemic change. By
fostering collaboration across industries, it
not only drives sustainable business
practices but also aligns India’s packaging
ecosystem with global environmental
stewardship goals.

PACKAGED COMMODITIES
AMENDMENT RULES, 2015
The Legal Metrology (Packaged
Commodities) (Amendment) Rules, 2015
provided businesses with additional time to
comply with updated labeling
requirements. Recognizing the disruptions
caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, the
government allowed the use of pre-printed
packaging materials until January 1, 2025.

This extension was aimed at ensuring a
smoother transition to the revised standards
while   reducing    operational    challenges.  

It also helped minimize financial losses and
unnecessary waste of pre-existing
packaging stock, offering much-needed
relief to manufacturers and retailers during
a period of uncertainty.

By balancing regulatory compliance with
industry realities, the amendment reflects a
practical approach toward supporting both
business continuity and consumer
protection.

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK
India’s flexible packaging industry is set to
maintain strong double-digit growth, fueled
by structural consumption shifts, rapid
urbanisation, the rise of e-commerce, and
increasing demand for processed food.
These factors are reshaping consumer
preferences and driving the need for more
efficient packaging solutions.

Rising logistics costs are further pushing
businesses toward lighter, compact, and
durable packaging that lowers shipping
expenses while enhancing supply chain
efficiency. This shift is not only cost-driven
but also operationally strategic, enabling
companies to stay competitive in a fast-
changing market.

At the same time, government initiatives
such as Make in India, sustainability
regulations, and policy support for MSMEs
are creating a favourable environment for
expansion. However, to fully realise this
potential, industry players must balance
affordability with compliance, invest in
green technologies, and establish strong
local recycling networks to align with
India’s evolving regulatory and
environmental priorities.

Looking ahead, companies that focus on
consumer-centric innovation—such as
sustainable designs, smart packaging, and
greater convenience—will be best
positioned to capture market share and
build long-term brand value in India’s
dynamic packaging ecosystem.
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO
The Indian packaging industry is undergoing
rapid transformation, shaped by consumer
preferences for convenience, sustainability,
and cost efficiency. With e-commerce,
FMCG, food delivery, and pharmaceuticals
driving demand, companies with diverse,
adaptable, and innovative product
portfolios are better positioned to capture
long-term growth.

Clara Industries has built a comprehensive
product mix that balances mainstream
packaging solutions with innovative, value-
added products. This combination not only
enables the company to serve a wide
spectrum of industries but also strengthens
its competitiveness in an environment
increasingly defined by regulatory
requirements and consumer-led
sustainability.

appeal. Manufactured in monolayer, two-
layer, and three-layer structures, these films
are engineered to deliver the right balance
of strength, flexibility, and barrier
properties depending on customer
requirements. Available in both roll form
and as customized pouches, they cater to a
wide spectrum of applications across food,  
personal care, and industrial segments.

The key advantage of these films lies in
their ability to support high-quality printing,
enabling vibrant graphics, brand
messaging, and product information to be
displayed with clarity and durability. This
makes them not only a protective medium
but also a powerful tool for brand
differentiation on retail shelves. With
customizable formats, sizes, and finishes,
our printed films are designed to meet
diverse client specifications while ensuring
consistency in performance and quality.

PACKAGING FILMS
Our packaging
films form the
foundation of
versatile, reliable,
and high-
performing
solutions    for      a 

            wide range of industries. At the
core of this portfolio are LD PP multilayer
sheets, manufactured from high-quality
polypropylene and LLDPE granules using
advanced multilayer extrusion technology.
This process ensures excellent durability,
flexibility, and barrier protection, helping
safeguard products against moisture, dust,
and external contaminants while extending
shelf life and maintaining quality.

These films are available both in roll form
and as ready-to-use bags, offering
convenience for diverse industrial and
consumer applications. Food processors
use them for hygienic, tamper-resistant
packaging, while the agricultural and
industrial sectors value their strength for
safe storage and bulk handling. Lightweight
yet resilient,  they  also  contribute  to cost-

efficiency in logistics and transportation.
Importantly, their recyclability aligns with
the growing emphasis on sustainable
packaging practices. By combining
performance, versatility, and eco-
responsibility, our packaging films deliver
solutions that meet evolving customer
expectations in a dynamic market.

PRINTED PLASTIC
FILMS
Our printed plastic
films offer an
advanced
packaging solution
that combines
functionality with
strong           visual

PLASTIC MATS
Our plastic mats
combine durability,
functionality, and
design appeal,
making them a
popular choice for
both domestic and 
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commercial use. Manufactured from high-
quality polypropylene, these mats are
lightweight yet strong, offering excellent
resistance to wear, moisture, and everyday
use. Their versatility allows them to serve
multiple purposes—from floor coverings in
households and offices to outdoor and
recreational applications.

With a wide range of colors, patterns, and
textures, our mats are crafted to suit
diverse consumer preferences while
maintaining affordability and ease of
maintenance. They are easy to clean,
foldable for convenient storage, and long-
lasting, making them a practical solution
for modern lifestyles. Beyond everyday
utility, plastic mats also cater to export
markets where demand for low-cost, high-
quality, and multipurpose household
products is steadily increasing.

conventional aluminium foil and butter
paper.Unlike aluminium foil, which may
have harmful effects when in direct contact
with food, our metallised food wrap
ensures safety without compromising on
performance. It is crafted to maintain
freshness, prevent contamination, and
preserve the natural taste and aroma of
food.

Available in convenient 1 kg rolls, the wrap
is easy to handle and versatile for multiple
uses—whether for packing tiffins, storing
cooked meals, or wrapping fresh produce.
Its combination of durability, light weight,
and eco-friendliness makes it especially
suitable for households, restaurants, and
food businesses seeking reliable and
responsible packaging. With the rising
consumer preference for safer and
sustainable options, our metallised food
wrap stands out as a modern, everyday
essential.

both domestic and export markets, catering
to the rising demand for innovative and
eco-friendly cultivation solutions.

HORTICULTURE
BAGS
Our horticulture
bags are designed
to meet the
growing needs of
modern
agriculture,
floriculture,      and 

urban gardening. Manufactured from high-
quality materials, these bags are durable,
lightweight, and capable of withstanding
varying weather conditions, making them a
reliable choice for farmers and gardeners
alike. They provide an efficient and cost-
effective alternative to traditional pots,
offering portability and flexibility in both
small-scale and commercial cultivation.

Available in a variety of sizes and
specifications, these bags are ideally suited
for growing vegetables, fruits, ornamental
plants, and nursery saplings. Their
breathable yet sturdy structure promotes
healthy root development and efficient
water drainage, ensuring optimal plant
growth. With the increasing emphasis on
sustainable farming practices, our
horticulture   bags  are  gaining  traction  in 

FOOD WRAP
Our food wrap is a
one-side
metallised, high-
quality packaging
solution designed
as a healthier and
more.   sustainable
alternative          to 

CLING WRAP
Our cling wrap is a
transparent,
stretchable, and
food-grade film
designed to
provide reliable
protection and
everyday 

                            convenience. It clings
tightly around containers, bowls, and food
items, helping to prevent air exposure and
keeping food fresher for longer. Its
flexibility and self-sealing properties make
it  easy  to handle, ensuring  a secure  wrap 



Annual Report 2024-25 58

without the need for additional sealing
tools.

Available in different sizes, the wrap caters
to a wide range of needs, from household
kitchens to restaurants, bakeries, and
catering services. It is commonly used for
wrapping fresh fruits, vegetables, dairy,
and cooked meals, ensuring hygiene and
extending shelf life. By preserving moisture
and preventing odour transfer, cling wrap
offers a practical, efficient, and modern
solution for food storage and handling.

of medical documents, diagnostic reports,
and other important records. Crafted from
premium-quality materials, they combine
durability with practicality, making them
suitable for both routine and sensitive
documentation. These envelopes are
available in three distinct varieties, each
tailored to specific needs.

The Basic envelopes offer a simple and
reliable solution for everyday use, making
them well-suited for non-sensitive
documents, internal communications, and
routine reports. For documents that require
frequent access, the Resealable envelopes
provide added convenience as they can be
opened and sealed multiple times while
maintaining security and accessibility. At
the highest level of protection, the Tamper-
Proof envelopes ensure maximum
confidentiality. Once opened, they cannot
be resealed, providing a clear indication of
any unauthorized access, making them
ideal for legal documents, confidential lab
reports, and sensitive materials that
demand absolute security.

MACHINERY & MANUFACTURING
STRENGTH
At Clara Industries, we have built a strong
manufacturing backbone powered by
advanced, high-performance machinery.
Our facilities are equipped with cutting-
edge extrusion, printing, lamination, slitting,
rewinding, and recycling units that enable
us to deliver consistent quality, large-scale
production, and innovative packaging
solutions. This integrated setup not only
supports our wide product portfolio—from
packaging films and flexible packaging to
mats, tapes, and food wraps—but also
reinforces our commitment to efficiency,
precision, and sustainability.

Clara Industries operates with strong and
versatile manufacturing capabilities spread
across three dedicated units, each
equipped with advanced machinery to
cater to different product lines. These
facilities  are  designed  to  manage  large-

SELF-ADHESIVE
TAPES
Our self-adhesive
tapes are versatile
packaging
solutions designed
for reliable sealing,
bundling, and
protection   across 

multiple industries. Manufactured with
strong adhesion properties, they ensure
secure bonding on a wide variety of
surfaces, from cartons and parcels to
plastics and metals. The tapes are easy to
apply, tear-resistant, and maintain their
grip even under varying storage and transit
conditions, making them indispensable in
logistics, warehousing, and retail
environments.

Available in different sizes and
specifications, these tapes are widely used
for packaging, labeling, and protective
applications. Their durability, convenience,
and cost-effectiveness make them an
essential component in both commercial
operations and day-to-day use, ensuring
efficiency and reliability in every
application.

LAB REPORT
ENVELOPES
Our lab report
envelopes are
designed for the
secure and
efficient   handling 
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scale production while upholding strict
quality and safety standards, enabling us to
serve a wide spectrum of industries with
reliability.

Our infrastructure includes multi-layer and
monolayer extrusion lines, state-of-the-art
rotogravure and flexographic printing
machines, lamination systems, and high-
speed cutting, stitching, and rewinding
equipment. Together, these give us the
flexibility to deliver both standard and
highly customized products—ranging from
packaging films and flexible pouches to
mats, self-adhesive tapes, horticulture
bags, and food wraps.

In addition, in-house recycling and batch-
making units strengthen our sustainability
focus by reducing waste and optimizing
raw material usage. With the combined
capacity of our three units, Clara Industries
stands well-positioned to meet rising
market demands while consistently
innovating to match global benchmarks of
quality and performance.

KEY MACHINERY
At Clara Industries, our strength lies in the
seamless integration of advanced
machinery with skilled manufacturing
practices. We have built a strong
ecosystem of equipment that allows us to
deliver flexible packaging solutions that are
not only high in quality but also adaptable
to the diverse needs of our customers. Our
production is anchored by a modern multi-
layer Mamta Brampton extrusion line, which
ensures films with excellent durability and
barrier properties, while monolayer
extruders give us the versatility to produce
films across a wide spectrum of
applications.

In our mats division, precision looms and
thread warping machines enable us to
craft plastic mats that combine strength
with visual appeal, while specialized
extruders ensure consistency in every
weave and finish. For printing and finishing,
we rely on high-precision rotogravure and
flexographic  machines  that  bring  designs 

to life with sharp detailing and vibrant
colors. These are further complemented by
lamination systems that add strength, and
slitting, rewinding, pouch cutting, and
sealing machines that prepare the final
products in formats suited for both mass
production and customized orders.

Equally important is our commitment to
sustainability. With in-house recycling
systems, including advanced mother-baby
recycling lines and agglomerators, we are
able to convert plastic waste back into
usable raw material. This not only reduces
our environmental footprint but also
ensures a steady flow of resources for
production. Together, this blend of cutting-
edge technology and eco-conscious
infrastructure allows Clara Industries to stay
ahead in innovation, efficiency, and
responsibility, setting us apart in the
packaging industry.
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At Clara Industries, our strength comes
from combining innovation, scale, and trust
to deliver packaging solutions that add real
value. Over time, we have developed a
diverse product portfolio that includes food
wraps, horticulture bags, flexible packaging
films, self-adhesive tapes, and more. This
variety enables us to serve a wide range of
industries, from food to healthcare and
agriculture, making us a reliable partner for
customers with different requirements.

Our three manufacturing units are
equipped with advanced extrusion,
lamination, and printing technologies,
giving us the ability to respond quickly to
evolving market needs. These facilities
allow us to create packaging that balances
quality, functionality, and sustainability,
while also providing the flexibility to
innovate and customize solutions as per
customer expectations.

Equally important is our commitment to
sustainability and responsibility. We are
continuously exploring eco-friendly
alternatives and recycling-led initiatives
that help reduce environmental impact
while supporting the long-term goals of our
customers. Alongside this, we place strong
emphasis on relationships. By ensuring
consistent quality, timely delivery, and
tailored solutions, we have become more
than just a packaging supplier. For many of
our clients, we are a partner they can trust
to support their growth.

Clara Industries’ competitive edge lies in
this blend of diverse offerings, modern
manufacturing capabilities, focus on
sustainability, and a people-centered
approach. This combination has powered
our growth so far and will continue to guide
our journey in the future.

BUSINESS STRATEGY &
INITIATIVES
Clara Industries’ business strategy is built
on a clear vision of growth, innovation, and
responsibility. In a dynamic market shaped
by     changing     consumer    expectations, 

evolving regulations, and rapid
technological shifts, we focus on
strengthening our core operations while
embracing new opportunities. Our
initiatives are guided by a dual approach:
expanding our product portfolio and
manufacturing capabilities to meet rising
demand, while also investing in sustainable
practices and customer-centric solutions
that ensure long-term value creation.

CUSTOMER-CENTRIC INNOVATION
At Clara Industries, we believe that the
strongest businesses are built around the
people they serve. Customer-centric
innovation for us is about going beyond
simply meeting current needs—it is about
anticipating future expectations and
creating solutions that grow with our
clients. We invest in understanding
consumer behaviour, market trends, and
shifting lifestyles so that our strategies
remain aligned with what truly matters to
our customers. This mindset enables us to
stay agile and proactive, ensuring that our
offerings remain relevant in a rapidly
evolving marketplace.

Our approach to innovation is highly
collaborative. We actively engage with
clients, partners, and stakeholders to co-
create ideas, gather insights, and refine
solutions that enhance their experiences.
From adopting digital tools that simplify
processes to streamlining service delivery
and improving operational transparency,
our focus is on building trust and long-
lasting relationships. By maintaining open
channels of communication and valuing
customer feedback at every stage, we are
able to shape offerings that resonate more
deeply and add greater value.

Ultimately, customer-centric innovation at
Clara Industries is not a one-time initiative
but an ongoing commitment. It is about
building an organisation that listens, learns,
and adapts—one that puts customer
satisfaction at the heart of its growth
strategy. This philosophy continues to guide
our      investments,      partnerships,      and 
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initiatives, allowing us to evolve in step with
those who rely on us.

OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY
Operational efficiency lies at the core of
Clara Industries’ success and growth
journey. We recognise that in today’s
competitive landscape, efficiency is not
only about reducing costs but also about
ensuring consistency, reliability, and speed
across every stage of our operations.
Through careful planning, disciplined
execution, and continuous improvement, we
have built processes that allow us to
maximise output while maintaining the
highest standards of quality.

Our three manufacturing units operate in a
well-coordinated manner, enabling us to
balance production across diverse product
lines and respond quickly to market
demands. Automation and modern
machinery support accuracy and precision,
while streamlined workflows minimise
wastage and downtime. By integrating
technology with skilled manpower, we
ensure that every step of production is both
productive and adaptable.

Efficiency for us also extends beyond the
shop floor. From supply chain management
to distribution and customer service, we
focus on optimising resources and
improving turnaround times. This
commitment to operational excellence not
only strengthens our competitiveness but
also allows us to deliver greater value to
our customers while driving sustainable
growth.

FUTURE GROWTH MISSION
At Clara Industries, our vision for the future
is driven by a strong belief in sustainable
expansion and continuous value creation.
We see growth not merely as an increase in
scale but as an opportunity to diversify,
innovate, and strengthen our role in the
industries we serve. Our mission is to build
on the foundation of trust, quality, and
efficiency that has brought us this far, while
setting ambitious goals for the years
ahead.

One of the key milestones in our growth
journey is the upcoming establishment of a
new woven sack plant. This facility will add
significant capacity to our portfolio,
enabling us to enter new markets and serve
existing customers with enhanced
offerings. The addition reflects our strategy
of aligning investments with industry
demand and ensuring that our
manufacturing capabilities remain future-
ready.

Beyond capacity expansion, we are
committed to adopting advanced
technologies, exploring new product
segments, and enhancing our sustainability
practices. By combining innovation with
responsible growth, we aim to not only
increase our market presence but also
contribute positively to the communities
and industries we touch. Our mission is
clear: to shape Clara Industries into a
diversified, future-focused organisation
with growth that is both steady and
meaningful.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
OVERVIEW
The financial year under review was marked
by a softer performance compared to the
previous year, reflecting the impact of
global macroeconomic challenges, raw
material price volatility, and the
commissioning of new capacity. While
revenue and profitability moderated, these
outcomes were anticipated as part of the
company’s transition phase, with resources
strategically directed toward expansion
and strengthening operational capabilities.

Despite the short-term decline, Clara
Industries Limited maintained a sound
financial position, with disciplined cost
management and steady cash flows
supporting stability. Investments in new
units, including the woven sack plant,
alongside ongoing modernization of
machinery, underline the company’s
commitment to building a stronger growth
platform. With a diversified product
portfolio and a resilient business model, the 
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company remains well-positioned to regain
momentum and deliver sustainable value
creation in the years ahead.

During FY 2024–25, the company recorded
a moderation in its overall financial
performance compared to the previous
year. Revenue declined slightly due to
elevated raw material costs, global
demand fluctuations, and the ramp-up
phase of the newly commissioned unit.
Profitability was also impacted as strategic
investments were directed toward
expansion and capacity building.

Revenue

Total revenue for the year reflected a
marginal decline as compared to FY 2023–
24. The dip was largely cyclical, influenced
by raw material price volatility and a
slower-than-expected demand recovery.
However, the long-term growth trajectory
remains intact, supported by structural
industry drivers.
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Profitability

Profit before tax (PBT) and profit after tax
(PAT) moderated in line with revenue
performance and expansion-related costs.
These figures are expected to recover in
the upcoming periods as the benefits of
enhanced capacity, product diversification,
and efficiency measures begin to
materialize.
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Future Outlook

With the commissioning of the woven sack
plant, adoption of advanced technologies,
and diversification into new product
categories, Clara Industries is strategically
positioned for a rebound in performance
and sustained value creation over the
medium to long term.
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OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
OPPORTUNITIES
The flexible packaging industry in India is
entering a new era of expansion,
presenting Clara Industries with significant
opportunities to scale and diversify. Rapid
urbanisation, shifting consumption patterns,
and rising awareness around sustainability
are creating new avenues where innovation
and efficiency in packaging are highly
valued. For companies with strong
manufacturing capabilities and a versatile
product range, this evolving landscape
offers considerable potential to strengthen
market position and capture emerging
demand.

E-commerce and Digital Retail Growth

The explosive growth of e-commerce and
quick-commerce platforms has reshaped
how products are packaged, stored, and
delivered. Lightweight, durable, and cost-
efficient packaging is increasingly in
demand to ensure products are transported
safely while keeping logistics costs low. This
trend creates a vast opportunity for Clara
Industries to supply packaging solutions
that meet the unique needs of online retail,
particularly as the market expands beyond
metros into tier-2 and tier-3 cities.

FMCG and Food Delivery Expansion

India’s FMCG sector, supported by rising
incomes and lifestyle shifts, continues to
grow at a strong pace. Simultaneously, the
food delivery and takeaway segment is
becoming mainstream, with millions of
households now relying on these services
regularly. These dynamics are driving
demand for packaging that combines
functionality with safety and hygiene.
Products such as food wraps, cling films,
and tamper-proof solutions are expected
to witness higher adoption, providing an
avenue for consistent volume growth.

Sustainability and Regulatory Push

The regulatory landscape is increasingly
focused  on   sustainability,   with  initiatives 

such as Extended Producer Responsibility
(EPR), the ban on single-use plastics, and
FSSAI’s guidelines on food-safe materials.
While these changes raise compliance
requirements, they also create
opportunities for companies that
proactively align with eco-friendly
practices. Clara Industries is well
positioned to take advantage of this shift
by offering recyclable, reusable, and
environmentally responsible products. As
global brands in India look for supply chain
partners with strong green credentials, this
alignment can become a significant
competitive advantage.

Diversification Through Woven Sack
Plant

The establishment of a new woven sack
plant presents a strategic growth avenue
by expanding the company’s presence into
bulk and industrial packaging. Woven sacks
are widely used in agriculture, cement,
fertilizers, and other industrial sectors, all of
which are witnessing rising demand in
India’s growth story. This diversification not
only reduces dependence on a single
segment but also positions Clara Industries
to serve a much broader customer base,
ensuring resilience in changing market
conditions.
Global Market Entry
Beyond domestic expansion, the flexible
packaging industry also offers opportunities
for increased global participation. With
India emerging as a preferred hub for cost-
efficient and high-quality manufacturing,
exports of packaging products are
expected to rise steadily. By leveraging
modern machinery, strong product quality,
and compliance with international
standards, Clara Industries can strengthen
its foothold in overseas markets, creating
an additional growth stream for the years
ahead.

THREATS
While the flexible packaging industry offers
significant growth opportunities, it is also
shaped by challenges that can impact
profitability   and  long-term   sustainability. 
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These threats, if not managed proactively,
may create obstacles in scaling operations
or maintaining competitiveness in a fast-
evolving marketplace. Recognising these
challenges is the first step toward building
strategies that mitigate risks and
strengthen resilience.

Raw Material Price Volatility

One of the most pressing threats for the
packaging industry is the fluctuation in raw
material prices, particularly polymers
derived from crude oil. Any sharp increase
in crude oil prices directly inflates input
costs, compressing margins for packaging
manufacturers. For companies operating in
a highly competitive market where cost
efficiency is critical, this volatility poses a
substantial risk. Moreover, disruptions in
global supply chains, as seen in recent
years, can exacerbate the challenge by
limiting availability and delaying
procurement.

Regulatory and Compliance Pressures

The tightening of environmental regulations,
while creating opportunities for sustainable
products, also brings significant
compliance challenges. Policies such as the
Plastic Waste Management Rules, the ban
on single-use plastics, and evolving FSSAI
standards require companies to
continuously adapt their processes,
materials, and supply chains. Non-
compliance can result in financial
penalties, reputational damage, and loss of
market access. For smaller manufacturers,
keeping pace with these changes is
especially difficult, but even larger
companies must consistently invest in
research and compliance systems to stay
aligned with evolving requirements.

Intense Market Competition

The packaging industry in India is
fragmented, with the presence of numerous
regional players as well as large-scale
multinational corporations. Intense price
competition is common, leading to pressure
on margins and limiting the scope for
aggressive   pricing   strategies.   The  rapid 

pace of innovation also means that
products can quickly become outdated,
requiring continuous investment in
technology and R&D. In such a landscape,
differentiation through quality, innovation,
and customer trust becomes essential to
maintaining a strong position.

Environmental and Social Perception

Plastic packaging continues to be viewed
critically in public discourse due to its
association with waste and pollution. While
flexible packaging offers efficiency and
recyclability in many cases, negative
consumer sentiment around plastics can
affect demand. Growing environmental
activism and shifting consumer preferences
toward biodegradable alternatives could
challenge traditional packaging solutions.
Companies that fail to address these
perceptions with sustainable innovations
risk being sidelined in favour of more eco-
friendly competitors.

Global and Macroeconomic Uncertainty

Broader macroeconomic and geopolitical
risks also play a role in shaping the
industry’s outlook. Currency fluctuations,
trade restrictions, or global slowdowns can
disrupt export markets and raise
operational costs. Events such as the
Covid-19 pandemic and supply chain crises
have highlighted the vulnerability of
globalised industries. For packaging
companies aiming to expand globally,
these uncertainties remain an ever-present
risk that requires strategic preparedness.

The Indian flexible packaging industry
presents a compelling mix of growth
opportunities and critical challenges. While
rising demand from sectors such as e-
commerce, FMCG, and pharmaceuticals,
alongside sustainability-driven innovation, is
creating strong tailwinds, issues such as
raw material volatility, regulatory pressures,
and environmental concerns demand
careful navigation. Companies that are
able to balance opportunity with
preparedness by innovating responsibly will
be best positioned to sustain growth and
create long-term value.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK AND ROADMAP
As the global and Indian packaging
landscape continues to evolve, Clara
Industries is entering a transformative
phase of growth. The next few years will be
defined not only by expanding market
opportunities but also by our ability to
innovate responsibly, adapt to regulatory
shifts, and strengthen our position as a
trusted partner to diverse industries. The
company’s focus will remain on aligning its
strategies with changing consumer
behavior, the demand for sustainable
solutions, and the growing role of
technology in packaging. Our roadmap,
therefore, is designed to capture growth
while building resilience and ensuring long-
term value creation.

Industry Alignment and Growth Vision

India’s flexible packaging market is
projected to grow at a double-digit pace,
fueled by rising urbanization, increased
consumer spending, and the rapid adoption
of organized retail and e-commerce. Clara
Industries intends to leverage this
momentum by expanding its product
portfolio and strengthening its footprint
across high-demand categories such as
food, pharmaceuticals, and personal care.
With increasing government emphasis on
sustainability and responsible waste
management, we see a strong opportunity
to position our products as both eco-
friendly and cost-effective. Our long-term
vision is not only to grow alongside the
market but also to play a leadership role in
shaping packaging trends that address
both convenience and responsibility.

Investment in Capacity and
Infrastructure

The roadmap for the coming years involves
significant investments in expanding our
production capacity. A key milestone will
be the establishment of the new woven
sack plant, which represents a strategic
step  into  a  complementary   business  line 

with strong demand prospects in
agriculture, cement, and industrial
applications. Additionally, our existing three
units will undergo continuous
modernization, focusing on advanced
machinery, automation, and digitization to
improve efficiency and ensure consistent
quality. By combining scale with
technology, Clara Industries will be better
positioned to meet rising domestic and
international demand.

Driving Innovation and Sustainability

Innovation will be central to our strategy
going forward. As consumer expectations
shift toward recyclable, reusable, and
traceable packaging, we plan to
accelerate R&D initiatives in eco-friendly
materials, biodegradable solutions, and
smart packaging technologies. Partnerships
with recyclers, raw material suppliers, and
technology providers will be instrumental in
this journey. Beyond product innovation,
sustainability will be embedded in our
operations through energy efficiency,
waste reduction, and adoption of
renewable energy wherever feasible. These
initiatives not only align with global trends
but also reinforce our responsibility toward
environmental stewardship.

Strengthening Market Presence

Clara Industries aims to consolidate its
position in the domestic market while
exploring growth opportunities in exports.
The Indian subcontinent’s role as a
manufacturing hub provides us with a
unique advantage to cater to global
customers seeking cost-efficient and
quality packaging solutions. Strategic
alliances, expanded distribution networks,
and closer engagement with end-user
industries will ensure that we remain agile
and responsive to changing market
dynamics. By strengthening customer
relationships and offering value-added
services, we aspire to be recognized not
just as a supplier, but as a long-term
strategic partner.
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Embracing Digital Transformation

The packaging sector is increasingly being
reshaped by digital technologies, and
Clara Industries intends to stay ahead of
the curve. The integration of ERP systems,
data-driven decision-making tools, and
digital quality monitoring will be prioritized
across our units. Looking forward, the
adoption of AI-driven design processes,
IoT-enabled machinery, and smart
packaging features will further enhance our
operational efficiency and customer
engagement. Digitalization is not just a tool
for efficiency—it is a key enabler of
transparency, compliance, and long-term
competitiveness.

Talent and Organizational Development

Growth is not possible without a strong and
adaptive workforce. Clara Industries
recognizes the need to invest in its people
through training, upskilling, and leadership
development programs. The company’s
roadmap includes initiatives to foster a
culture of innovation, accountability, and
collaboration. By creating an environment
that values both performance and well-
being, we will continue to attract and
retain talent that drives our ambitions
forward.

Outlook Beyond 2029

Looking ahead to the end of this decade,
Clara Industries envisions itself as a
diversified, innovation-led, and
sustainability-driven packaging company
with a strong presence across both
domestic and international markets. The
combined impact of capacity expansion,
product innovation, digital transformation,
and a customer-centric mindset will enable
us to achieve sustained growth. While
challenges such as raw material volatility
and regulatory pressures will persist, our
roadmap is designed to balance risks with
opportunities, ensuring resilience and
consistent value creation.

SUSTAINABILITY
Commitment to Responsible Growth

At Clara Industries, sustainability is not a
separate initiative but an integral part of
how we operate, innovate, and grow. We
recognize that the packaging industry is at
the center of global discussions on waste
management, climate change, and
consumer safety. As a responsible player,
we are committed to reducing
environmental impact while delivering high-
quality packaging solutions that meet
modern demands. Our approach balances
three priorities—economic performance,
environmental stewardship, and social
responsibility—ensuring long-term value
creation for all stakeholders.

Environmental Responsibility

One of our most critical responsibilities lies
in addressing the environmental challenges
posed by plastic waste. We have taken
significant steps to minimize our ecological
footprint by adopting lightweight
packaging formats that use fewer
resources and generate lower emissions
during transportation. Efforts are underway
to increase the use of recyclable and
reusable materials across our product
portfolio, in line with global sustainability
benchmarks.

Our three manufacturing units are being
upgraded with energy-efficient systems,
water conservation measures, and waste
segregation practices. Investments in
modern extrusion and printing technologies
have not only enhanced production quality
but also reduced scrap generation and
energy consumption. Over the coming
years, we aim to further integrate
renewable energy sources into our
operations and strengthen partnerships
with recyclers to promote a circular
economy in packaging.

Product Innovation for a Circular Future

Sustainability  in  packaging   is   no  longer 
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limited to compliance—it is a driver of
consumer choice and brand differentiation.
Clara Industries is aligning its product
development strategy with this new reality.
From metallised food wraps that reduce
dependency on harmful aluminum foils to
eco-conscious cling films and recyclable
horticulture bags, our innovations are
designed with both functionality and
environmental impact in mind.

Product Innovation for a Circular Future

Sustainability in packaging is no longer
limited to compliance—it is a driver of
consumer choice and brand differentiation.
Clara Industries is aligning its product
development strategy with this new reality.
From metallised food wraps that reduce
dependency on harmful aluminum foils to
eco-conscious cling films and recyclable
horticulture bags, our innovations are
designed with both functionality and
environmental impact in mind.

We are also preparing to embrace
upcoming regulatory mandates such as
Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) by
developing products that meet
requirements for recycled content,
traceability, and reuse. By embedding
sustainability in our product portfolio, we
are not only staying ahead of compliance
but also creating meaningful choices for
customers seeking responsible packaging
alternatives.

Social Responsibility and Community
Engagement

Sustainability extends beyond the
environment to the communities where we
operate. Clara Industries is deeply
committed to contributing to social
development through responsible
employment, skill development, and local
community initiatives. By creating
opportunities for local talent and
supporting micro-enterprises, we foster
inclusive growth that benefits both the
business and society at large.

Our CSR initiatives, including financial aid
programs and community outreach, are
directed toward improving education,
healthcare, and social security in regions
around our manufacturing hubs. Through
such programs, we aim to play a role in
uplifting communities while building
goodwill and trust with stakeholders.

Compliance and Governance

We believe that strong governance is the
foundation of sustainability. Clara
Industries adheres strictly to all applicable
environmental and safety regulations,
including the Plastic Waste Management
Rules, EPR guidelines, and FSSAI
regulations for food-grade materials.
Regular internal audits, external
certifications, and transparent disclosures
ensure accountability in every aspect of our
operations. Going forward, we will continue
to strengthen traceability, data-driven
monitoring, and reporting systems to
enhance compliance while maintaining
transparency with our stakeholders.

Roadmap for a Sustainable Tomorrow

Our sustainability roadmap is designed with
clear objectives: to reduce waste at
source, improve recyclability, and optimize
energy use. In the near term, we are
focused on integrating recyclable materials
into mainstream production and expanding
collection and reuse programs. Over the
medium to long term, our targets include a
higher share of renewable energy, zero
landfill status across units, and partnerships
for large-scale recycling projects.

Clara Industries envisions becoming a
leader in sustainable packaging by 2030,
building a future where every product we
create not only fulfills the functional needs
of customers but also leaves a positive
imprint on the planet. Our vision is rooted in
the belief that packaging can go beyond
utility—it can inspire confidence, protect
resources, and promote circularity. To
achieve    this,    we    are    committed    to 
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continuously rethinking materials,
processes, and business models in ways
that reduce waste and extend product
lifecycles.

This journey calls for more than just
technological upgrades; it requires a
culture of responsibility and innovation
across the organization. We are fostering
partnerships with suppliers, recyclers,
policymakers, and customers to co-create
solutions that make sustainability practical
and scalable. At the same time, we
recognize that our people are the driving
force behind this vision, and their collective
effort and shared purpose will shape how
far and how fast we progress.

By combining innovation with accountability
and collaboration with ambition, Clara
Industries aims to set new benchmarks for
sustainable growth in the packaging
industry. Our roadmap is clear: to design
with responsibility, produce with efficiency,
and deliver with integrity, so that our
impact extends beyond profits to the well-
being of society and the health of our
planet.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND NOTES
Basis of Preparation of Financial
Statements

The financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with
the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (Indian GAAP). These
statements comply, in all material respects,
with the Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. The financial
statements are prepared on an accrual
basis under the historical cost convention.
The accounting policies have been applied
consistently, except where a departure is
specifically stated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with Indian GAAP requires
management to make estimates,
judgments, and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income, and expenses, as well as the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
reporting date. These estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of
current events and expected future
outcomes. However, actual results may
differ, requiring adjustments to carrying
values in subsequent periods.

Property, Plant & Equipment and
Intangible Assets

Property, plant, and equipment are carried
at cost of acquisition or construction, net of
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes the purchase
price and any directly attributable
expenses necessary to bring the asset to its
intended use. Expenditure on major
improvements and additions is capitalized,
while routine maintenance and repairs are
charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Depreciation is provided on the
Written Down Value method, based on the
useful lives prescribed under Schedule II of
the Companies Act, 2013, or as estimated
by management. Assets are reviewed for
impairment, and an impairment loss is
recognized when the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable value. Such losses
are reversed if there is an improvement in
recoverable value.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is earned,
measurable, and realizable, with no
significant uncertainty regarding collection.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized
upon transfer of ownership, delivery of
products, and satisfaction of contractual
obligations, with risks and rewards passed
to customers. Revenue is presented net of
indirect taxes such as Sales Tax and Goods
& Services Tax (GST).
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Investments

Investments intended to be held for not
more than one year are classified as
current investments, while all others are
classified as long-term investments.
Investments are initially recorded at cost,
including directly attributable acquisition
costs such as brokerage and duties.
Current investments are carried at the
lower of cost or fair value, determined on
an individual investment basis. Long-term
investments are carried at cost, with
provisions made for any decline in value
that is other than temporary. On disposal,
the difference between carrying value and
sale proceeds is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Raw materials and work-in-progress are
valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined on a
First-in-First-out (FIFO) basis, while net
realizable value represents the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. The
Company does not carry finished goods
inventory as of the reporting date.

Employee Benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of provident
fund contributions are defined contribution
schemes. The Company’s contributions are
charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year during which the employee
renders the related service.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises current tax and
deferred tax. Current tax is measured at
amounts expected to be paid in
accordance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, as enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax is recognized on timing
differences between taxable and 

accounting income, using enacted or
substantively enacted tax rates at the
Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets
are recognized only to the extent that there
is reasonable certainty of realization in
future periods.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or production of
qualifying assets that take a substantial
period to get ready for their intended use
are capitalized as part of the cost of such
assets. All other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Current Assets, Loans, and Advances

In the opinion of the Board, current assets,
loans, and advances are realizable at least
at the amounts stated in the Balance
Sheet, in the normal course of business,
and all liabilities are payable on demand or
as agreed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TO THE MEMBERS OF
CLARA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of CLARA INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement
of Profit and Loss and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to
the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

OPINION 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaidFinancial Statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st
March, 2025, the profit and total income, and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

BASIS FOR OPINION
 
We conducted our audit of the financial statement in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

OTHER INFORMATION
 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The Company’s annual report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In
connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we
read the Company’s annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
take necessary actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the  Companies Act, 2013  (“the Act”)  with respect  to  the preparation and  presentation of 
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these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
 
In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Financial Statements.
 
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in theFinancial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the
Auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the company’s preparation of the
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial
Statements.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:
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(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued thereunder.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “ANNEXURE - A”;
 
(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
 
(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: -

i. The Company did not have any pending litigations in its Financial Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contract which
may lead to any foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the period ended 31st March, 2025.

iv. During the year under audit, the Company has declared and paid an Interim Dividend
of 5%, i.e., ₹0.50 (Fifty paise) per equity share of face value ₹10/- each, fully paid up.
The Record Date for determining the eligibility of shareholders for the payment of the said
Interim Dividend was 06th June, 2024.
The payment of interim dividend is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereunder.

v.  

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
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(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.
 
vi. The proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, which mandates the
use of accounting software having a feature of recording an audit trail (edit log) for
maintaining books of account, became applicable to the Company with effect from April 1,
2023. Based on our examination, which included test checks, it was observed that the
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which does
not have the audit trail feature. Accordingly, the audit trail functionality has not been
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
the Company has also not preserved the audit trail as required under the said Rules.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

 For Jay Gupta and Associates
 (Erstwhile Gupta Agarwal & Associates)

 Chartered Accountants
 Firm’s Registration No: 329001E

  
  
  

 Jay Shanker Gupta
 Partner

Membership No: 059535
UDIN: 25059535BMHCAY4756

Place : Kolkata 
Date : May 21 , 2025
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ANNEXURE – A
REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3
OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CLARA
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit
of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the company’s internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements. �

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of  Financial Statements  for  external  purposes  in accordance  with  generally 
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accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.
 
INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to errors or frauds may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
 
OPINION 
 
In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March,2025, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 For Jay Gupta and Associates
 (Erstwhile Gupta Agarwal & Associates)

 Chartered Accountants
 Firm’s Registration No: 329001E

  
  
  

 Jay Shanker Gupta
 Partner

Membership No: 059535
UDIN: 25059535BMHCAY4756

Place : Kolkata 
Date : May 21 , 2025
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of report of evendate to the Financial Statements of the company for the year
ended 31st March, 2025; we report that:

1. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS [Clause 3(i)]:

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(c) As explained to us, these Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by
the management at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(d) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(e) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(f) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
Benami property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made
thereunder.

2. INVENTORY [Clause 3(ii)] 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the physical verification of
inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and in our
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate; and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed. 

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees during the year, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the company. 

3. LOAN GIVEN BY COMPANY [Clause 3(iii)] 

The company has not made any investments during the year. The Company has not granted
secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, to companies/firms/Limited Liability
Partnerships/ other parties, or stood guarantee, or provided security to companies/ firms/
Limited Liability Partnerships/other parties.
 
The Company has not granted secured/ unsecured loans/ advances in nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause
3(iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

4. LOAN TO DIRECTORS AND INVESTMENT BY COMPANY [Clause 3(iv)] 

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the
reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

5. DEPOSITS [Clause 3(v)] 

According  to the  information and  explanation given  to us  the company has not accepted  



Annual Report 2024-25 77

deposits from the public during the financial year under audit. Accordingly, the paragraph
3(v) of the order is not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

6. COST RECORDS [Clause 3(vi)] 

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities
carried on by the company. 

7. STATUTORY DUES [Clause 3(vii)] 

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of the above were in arrears as at 31st March, 2025 for a period of more than six
months from the date on when they become payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues of income
tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

8. SURRENDERED OR DISCLOSED INCOME [Clause 3(viii)] 

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961. 

9. REPAYMENT DUES [Clause 3(ix)] 

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has
not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and
government. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 
In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company. 

The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

10. UTILISATION OF INTIAL AND FURTHER PUBLIC OFFER [Clause 3(x)] 

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the period. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)
(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. However, During the financial year
2024-25, the Company issued 1,65,38,320 bonus equity shares of ₹10 each to its
shareholders  in  the ratio of 4  (four)  bonus  equity shares  for every 1  (one)  existing equity
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share held. The bonus issue was made in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules thereunder, and was entirely funded out of the
Company’s free reserves.
 
The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. 

11. FRAUD AND WHISTLE-BLOWER COMPLAINTS [CLAUSE 3(xi)] 

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year. 

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in
Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was
not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

Whistle-blower complaints have not been received during the year by the Company. 

12. NIDHI COMPANY [Clause 3(xii)] 

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, clause (xii) of
para 3 to Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 w.r.t. Nidhi Company is not applicable
to company. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the company
and hence not commented upon. 

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION [Clause 3(xiii)] 

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards. 

14. INTERNAT AUDIT: [CLAUSE 3(xiv)] 

The company have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business for the financial period ended March 31, 2025 and the report of Internal auditor
has been considered by us. 

15. NON-CASH TRANSACTION [Clause 3(xv)] 

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, the paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable to the company and hence
not commented upon. 

16. REGISTER WITH RBI ACT, 1934 [Clause 3(xvi)] 

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(xvi) of the order is not applicable to the
company. 

The Company  has not  conducted any  Non-Banking Financial or  Housing Finance activities 
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during the year. 

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined under the Regulations by
the Reserve Bank of India. 

17. CASH LOSSES [Clause 3(xvii)] 

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the period from 01st April, 2024 to 31st
March, 2025 and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

18. RESIGNATION OF STATUTORY AUDITORS [Clause 3(xviii)] 

No auditor has resigned from the post of the statutory auditors during the period under
review. 

19. MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY ON MEETING LIABILITIES [Clause 3(xix)] 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial
Statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we
are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

20. TRANSFER TO FUND SPECIFIED UNDER SCHEDULE VII OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013
[Clause 3(xx)] 

The provision relating to transfer to fund specified under schedule vii of the Companies Act,
2013 is not applicable to the company during the year. 
However, the company is required to deposit unspent 
amount for the F.Y. 2024-25 to fund specified under schedule VII within September, 2025. 

21. ADVERSE REMARKS IN CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Clause 3(xxi)] 

The company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statement for the F.Y. 2024-
2025. 

 For Jay Gupta and Associates
 (Erstwhile Gupta Agarwal & Associates)

 Chartered Accountants
 Firm’s Registration No: 329001E

  
  
  

 Jay Shanker Gupta
 Partner

Membership No: 059535
UDIN: 25059535BMHCAY4756

Place : Kolkata 
Date : May 21 , 2025
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BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2025

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED

 For Jay Gupta and Associates
 (Erstwhile Gupta Agarwal & Associates)

 Chartered Accountants
 Firm’s Registration No: 329001E

  
 Jay Shanker Gupta

 Partner
Membership No: 059535

UDIN: 25059535BMHCAY4756

Place : Kolkata 
Date : May 21 , 2025

For Clara Industries Limited
Parry Kukreja
Managing Director
DIN: 06649401

Nikhil Kukreja
Director & CFO
DIN: 06649387

Pooja
Company Secretary
Membership
No:A36167

Place : Saharanpur
Date : May 21 , 2025

(Rs. In lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED

 For Jay Gupta and Associates
 (Erstwhile Gupta Agarwal & Associates)

 Chartered Accountants
 Firm’s Registration No: 329001E

  
 Jay Shanker Gupta

 Partner
Membership No: 059535

UDIN: 25059535BMHCAY4756

Place : Kolkata 
Date : May 21 , 2025

For Clara Industries Limited
Parry Kukreja
Managing Director
DIN: 06649401

Nikhil Kukreja
Director & CFO
DIN: 06649387

Pooja
Company Secretary
Membership
No:A36167

Place : Saharanpur
Date : May 21 , 2025

(Rs. In lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST
MARCH, 2025

(Rs. In lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note :

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out
in the Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash Flow Statements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
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2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to confirm to those of the
Current Year

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED

 For Jay Gupta and Associates
 (Erstwhile Gupta Agarwal & Associates)

 Chartered Accountants
 Firm’s Registration No: 329001E

  
 Jay Shanker Gupta

 Partner
Membership No: 059535

UDIN: 25059535BMHCAY4756

Place : Kolkata 
Date : May 21 , 2025

For Clara Industries Limited
Parry Kukreja
Managing Director
DIN: 06649401

Nikhil Kukreja
Director & CFO
DIN: 06649387

Pooja
Company Secretary
Membership
No:A36167

Place : Saharanpur
Date : May 21 , 2025
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2025

b. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the
reporting period

Note:

The Authorised Share Capital of the company was increased from 1,10,00,000 Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- each to 21,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each vide resolution passed in
members meeting dated 20th June, 2024.

During the year ended F.Y. 2024-25, the Company issued Bonus Share of 1,65,38,320
Shares of Rs. 10 each to the shareholders in the ratio of 4 (Four) bonus equity share against 1
(One) existing equity shares
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c. Terms / Rights attached to equity shares

Ordinary Equity shares :
Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote irrespective of number of shares held. In
event of liquidation of company the holder of equity shares would be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts.

d) Details of Promoters Shareholdings

e. The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Note 4-

Note 5-



Annual Report 2024-25 86

Note 6-

Note: 

Overdraft facility Availed From Punjab National Bank at the ROI of 10.30%, Secured With
collateral as property of Parry Kukreja at Vill- Simbhalka, Sahranpur, UP- 247001 and
guarantee of M/s. Chand plastic corporation.

Note: Overdraft facility Availed From Bank of Baroda of Rs. 100.00 lakhs at the ROI of
10.65%, Secured With collateral as personal property of Mr. Nikjil Kukreja at 4/911 Jaffar
Nawaz, Saharanpur, Pin- 247001.

(Trade payables has been taken as certified by the management of the company, balances
are subjected to ledger confirmations) Segregation of trade payables as due to MSME and
Other than MSME are certified by management.

The Company has the process of identification of 'suppliers' registered under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development ('MSMED') Act, 2006, by obtaining
confirmations from all suppliers. The above disclosure has been extracted from the Audited
financial Statements of the Company from the respective year.

Ageing of the Supplier, alogwith any amount involved in disputes as required by Schedule III
of Companies Act, 2013 is disclosed below after it becomes due for payment. In case of no
credit terms defined the break-up of agewise supplier balance is given below after
consiering from the date of transactions.

Note 7-
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(Trade receivables has been taken as certified by the management of the company,
balances are subjected to ledger confirmations
As per the view of the management of the company there is no doubtful debt and hence
provision for doubtful debts have not been made)
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Note: 

The consumption of materials is derived after adjusting the opening & the closing inventory
of materials & therefore not reflected separately.

The value of Closing stock is considered as per AS-2 as certified by the management.
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NOTE 30-
Related Party Transactions

According to Accounting Standards-18 the company has presented disclosures in "Note-28".
No transactions to report against the following disclosure requirements as notified by MCA
pursuant to amended Schedule III:

a) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

b) Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder

c) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
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d) Relating to borrowed funds

 i) Wilful defaulter
 ii) Utilisation of borrowed funds & share premium
 iii) Borrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assets
 iv) Discrepancy in utilisation of borrowings
 v) Current maturity of long term borrowings

e) There are no layer of companies, hence no disclosures are required.

f) There is no scheme of arrangement approved in terms of section 230 to 237 of
Companies Act, 2013.

g) There are no loans and advances in the nature of loans that are granted to promoters,
directors, KMP's and other related parties either severally or jointly with any other person
that are repayable on demand.

h) The company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the income tax assessments
under the Income tax Act, 1961.

i) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the
intermediaries shall:

 (i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiary) or
 (ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries

j) The company has not received from any person(s) or entity(ies), including (funding party)
with the understanding that the company shall:

 (i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiary) or
 (ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS WITH STRUCK OFF COMPANIES

The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under
Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the
financial year.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE: Nil

 For Jay Gupta and Associates
 (Erstwhile Gupta Agarwal & Associates)

 Chartered Accountants
 Firm’s Registration No: 329001E

  
 Jay Shanker Gupta

 Partner
Membership No: 059535

UDIN: 25059535BMHCAY4756

Place : Kolkata 
Date : May 21 , 2025

For Clara Industries Limited
Parry Kukreja
Managing Director
DIN: 06649401

Nikhil Kukreja
Director & CFO
DIN: 06649387

Pooja
Company Secretary
Membership
No:A36167

Place : Saharanpur
Date : May 21 , 2025
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
1) Corporate Information: 

The Company is incorporated on September 02, 2021 vide Certificate of Incorporation
bearing Registration Number 151537 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur with the
name & style of CLARA INDUSTRIES LIMITED.
 the company is engaged in the business of provide manufacturing of LDPE, HDPE, PP,
BOPP, adhesive tapes and its related products & activities and manufacturers and traders
of plastic bags, industrial packaging self adhesive tapes. printing and plain multilayered
flexible packaging. manufacturer of pp plastic mats, twine and ropes. 

(1.a) Basis of Preparation: 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these
financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis and under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies have been
consistently applied except where specifically stated in financial statement and notes to
accounts of the non- conformity with the relevant Accounting Standard. 

(2.1) Significant Accounting Policies: 

(a) Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the
reporting period and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported
period. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the Carrying amounts of Assets or Liabilities in
future periods. 

(b) Property, Plant & equipment and Intangible Assets: 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost of an asset comprises of its
purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working condition
for its intended use. Expenditure on additions, improvements and renewals is capitalized
and expenditure for maintenance and repairs is charged to profit and loss account. 

Depreciation is provided on Written Down value basis based on life assigned to each asset
in accordance with Schedule II of the Act or as per life estimated by the Management. 

An asset is treated as impaired asset when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its
recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to the profit & loss account is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has
been changed in the estimate of recoverable amount. 

(c) Revenue Recognition: 

Revenue is recognized when it is earned and no significant uncertainty exists as to its
realization or collection. Revenue from sale of goods or services are recognized on delivery
of the products or services, when all significant contractual  obligations have been satisfied, 
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the property in the goods is transferred for price, significant risk and rewards of ownership
are transferred to the customers and no effective ownership is retained. 
In the financial statement, revenue from operation does not include Indirect taxes like sales
tax and/or Goods & service tax. 

(d) Investments: 

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one
year from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as current
investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. 

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises price and
directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. 

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis. Long term investments are carried at cost.
However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than
temporary in the value of Investments.
 
On disposal of investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal
proceeds are charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss. 

(e) Inventories: 

Inventory of W-I-P and Raw materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on FIFO basis. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

There is no stock of finished goods lying with the company. 

(f) Employee Benefits: 

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
contribution to the provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year
when an employee renders the related services. 

(g) Taxation: 

Tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the Tax Authorities in accordance with the Income Tax
Act’1961 enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred Tax Assets or Deferred Tax Liability is recognized on timing difference being the
difference between taxable incomes and accounting income. Deferred Tax Assets or
Deferred Tax Liability is measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets arising from timing
differences are recognized to the extent there is a reasonable certainty that the assets can
be realized in future. 

(h) Borrowing Cost: 

Borrowing Cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection
with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. 

(i) Segment Reporting: 
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The Company is engaged in business of provide manufacturing of LDPE, HDPE, PP, BOPP,
ADHESIVE TAPES. Considering the nature of Business and Financial Reporting of the
Company, the Company is operating in only one Segment. Hence segment reporting is not
applicable. 

(j) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities: 

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past
event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates. 

A Contingent Asset is not recognized in the Accounts. Details of Contingent Liabilities are
as follows: 

Particulars Amount in Lakhs

Tax deducted at sources 0.54

Total 0.54

(k) Earnings per share: 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. 

(l) Current Assets, Loans & Advances:

In the opinion of the Board and to the best of its knowledge and belief the value on
realization of current assets in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the
amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and repayable on demand. 

(m) Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED)
Act, 2006:

The Company has identified suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, based on the information and confirmations received
from vendors. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Act to the extent
applicable and there are no delays in payments to such registered enterprises during the
year. This disclosure is based on the information available with the Company. 

(n) CSR Expenses
 
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability
threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately
preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas
for CSR activities are promoting education, promoting gender equality by empowering
women, healthcare, environment sustainability, art and culture, destitute care and
rehabilitation, disaster relief, COVID-19 relief and rural development projects. The company
is required to expense on CSR activities during F.Y. 2024-25. 
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Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2025

(a) Total amount required to be spent during the
year

8.63

(b) Total amount of expenditure incurred during
the year

8.67

(c) Shortfall/ (excess) at the end of the year -

(d) Total amount of previous years shortfall 0.04

(e) Reason for shortfall
Identification and evaluation of

suitable projects taking longer than
anticipated

(f) Nature of CSR activities
Donation to Satya Foundation, Asha
Modern International School, DAV

College for Girls

(Rs. In lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company undertakes the following activities in the nature of Corporate social
responsibility (CSR): 

a. Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing 
vocational skills, especially among children, women, and elderly. 

b. Promotion of health care, including preventive health care and sanitation.
 
c. Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows, and their dependents. 

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED

 For Jay Gupta and Associates
 (Erstwhile Gupta Agarwal & Associates)

 Chartered Accountants
 Firm’s Registration No: 329001E

  
 Jay Shanker Gupta

 Partner
Membership No: 059535

UDIN: 25059535BMHCAY4756

Place : Kolkata 
Date : May 21 , 2025

For Clara Industries Limited
Parry Kukreja
Managing Director
DIN: 06649401

Nikhil Kukreja
Director & CFO
DIN: 06649387

Pooja
Company Secretary
Membership
No:A36167

Place : Saharanpur
Date : May 21 , 2025
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